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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
 
An Economic Overview 
 
Global Economy: 
 
Despite an improvement in near-term prospects, the global outlook remains subdued 
by historical standards. In 2024-25, the growth is set to underperform its 2010’s 
average in nearly 60 percent of economies, comprising over 80 percent of the global 
population. Downside risks predominate, including geopolitical tensions, trade 
fragmentation, higher-for-longer interest rates, and climate-related disasters. Global 
cooperation is needed to safeguard trade, support green and digital transitions, deliver 
debt relief, and improve food security. In EMDEs, public investment can boost 
productivity and catalyze private investment, promoting long-run growth. 
Comprehensive fiscal reforms are essential to address ongoing fiscal challenges in 
small states, including those arising from heightened exposure to external shocks.  
 
 
Indian Economy: 
 
India took a big economic leap this leap year: The country ended fiscal year 2023 to 
2024 with a big bang, surpassing all market estimates of GDP, with 8.15% year-over-
year (YoY) growth. For three consecutive years, India’s economy has exceeded growth 
expectations (averaging 8.3% annual growth over this period) despite global 
uncertainties, driven by strong domestic demand and continuous government efforts 
toward reforms and capital expenditure. 
 
Optimism prevails, which shows high confidence among industry leaders in India’s 
continued robust growth. With prevalent signs of the rural economy rebounding, 
strong growth in manufacturing, robust bank balance sheets and credit growth, and 
stronger exports in services and high-value manufacturing, there is confidence that 
India’s underlying potential will help it outpace growth in the rest of the world. 
 
The global economy is anticipated to rebound synchronously in 2025, as major 
election uncertainties are resolved, and Western central banks possibly implement rate 
cuts as inflation concerns subside. India is likely to experience improved capital flows, 
boosting private investment and exports. Inflation concerns remain, but we expect 
them to ease in the latter half of the next fiscal year, barring any surprises from rising 
oil or food prices. 
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Consumption spending has remained modest over the past five years despite overall 
strong GDP growth. The pandemic; high global and domestic inflation and consequent 
tightening of financial conditions; and the effects of poor agriculture output on rural 
demand seem to have capped private consumption growth in India. But amid all this, 
there is a silver lining: We notice distinct and broad-based shifts in the country’s 
consumption patterns. 
 
Decoding the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023 to 2024 
 
 
India’s GDP grew 8.15% YoY over fiscal 2023 to 2024, with a sharp growth of 7.8% in 
the fourth quarter of 2023, beating the government’s second advanced estimate of 
7.6% and Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI) estimate of 7.3%. Fourth-quarter economic 
activities pointed to three interesting trends: improvement in private consumption, 
exports, and manufacturing. 
 
Firstly, private consumption spending fared better last year than reported earlier. 
There were upward revisions to the third-quarter data, suggesting consumers spent 
more generously in the quarter of festivals and the Cricket World Cup than previously 
believed. Third-quarter GDP growth was revised to 8.6%, up from the earlier estimate 
of 8.4%, on the back of a 50-basis point upward revision of private consumption 
spending. That said, private consumption growth remained capped at 4.03% over 
fiscal 2023 to 2024, owing to modest growth in the agriculture sector and persistent 
inflation that weighed on rural demand. 
 
Secondly, Indian exports surged by an impressive 8.1% YoY in the fourth quarter—the 
highest this fiscal year. Merchandise exports improved remarkably that quarter (even 
though the quarter’s performance could not prevent annual merchandise export 
growth from contracting). Notably, high-value manufactured goods like 
pharmaceuticals, chemicals, engineering products, and electronics achieved record 
export levels this quarter, propelling overall growth in merchandise exports in the high 
value-added segment. This positive trend bodes well for India as it aims to strengthen 
its integration into the global value chain and increase its exports to US$2 trillion over 
the next six years. Growth in the traditional basket of exports, however, continued to 
decline 
 
And finally, 8.9% growth in manufacturing that quarter points toward sustained 
momentum. The index of industrial production also hinted at a strong revival in the 
sector. 
 
 
 
 

2



 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
India’s near-term outlook 
 
The robust growth in fiscal 2023 to 2024 and the continuity of the government at the 
center after the elections have increased confidence in the domestic economic 
fundamentals and buoyed India’s outlook. We expect India to grow between 7.0% and 
7.2% in the coming fiscal year (2024 to 2025) in our baseline scenario, followed by 
6.7% and 7.3% (admittedly, a much wider range due to uncertainties around several 
assumptions) in the subsequent years. 
 
Following a period of uncertainty in the first six months of the year, we believe India 
will see very strong growth in the second half. Some of the key contributing factors 
would be the continuity in domestic policy reforms, reduced uncertainties in the 
United States after elections, and a more synchronous global growth in a low inflation 
regime. Improved global liquidity conditions (as central banks in the West ease their 
monetary policy stance and cut policy rates) would improve capital flows and drive 
higher investments, especially in the private sector. A synchronous global economic 
recovery next year will likely help improve exports. 
 
The growth range predicted for next year is higher, as these uncertainties can swing 
economic activities quite distinctly. That said, we will continue to see the difference 
between actual GDP and no–COVID-19 levels progressively narrowing as growth picks 
up pace. 
 
Inflation concerns are likely to fade as we expect food price–driven pressures to ease in 
the latter half of the year. However, risks of intermittent and spatial monsoons could 
lead to higher food prices for more extended periods of time. Besides, stronger growth 
may also keep pressure on inflation as demand outpaces supply. We expect inflation to 
slowly revert to the RBI’s target level of 4% from early next year and remain within its 
comfort value over the forecast period. 
  
 
Industry Structure and Development  
 
Kritika Wires Ltd.”, a professionally managed company was incorporated in the year 
2004.  For over 20 (Twenty) years we are engaged in manufacturing of all types of Steel 
Wire and Galvanized Wire that ultimately cater to the needs of the State Electricity 
Boards, Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd, etc. The company is run by a group of 
qualified and highly experienced professionals, equipped with most sophisticated 
machines backed by well-equipped, testing facilities. 
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The Company produces wires of high precision to the utmost satisfaction of its 
National and International Customers. The company's state-of-the-art factory is 
situated in Sankrail Industrial Park, Howrah, West Bengal and is well connected 
logistically. 
 
The Company’s main business activities are manufacturing and sales of all types of 
Winding Wires to industry and trade segment. The Company is an Indian 
manufacturer and supplier of Winding Wires in organized market. The Company is 
known for its unique product range with its portfolio of all gauges backed by a 
widespread distribution network. The Company has a robust business model that has 
continuously steered its growth over the years. It is one of the most trusted brands 
providing winding wire solutions to both retail and industrial customers spread across 
the country. 
 
Opportunities and Threats 
 
The Company always focus on all the available opportunity in the Domestic and 
International Market.  It is continuously working on maintaining and improvising its 
quality to match the international standards and maintain a smooth supply chain 
management. 
 
Segments 
 
The Company is dealing in only one segment i.e., manufacturing and trading of wires. 
The Company is committed to achieve a reputation of market leader for the 
manufacture and supply of galvanized and non-galvanized wires by introducing the 
latest technologies, deploying trained personnel who are backed by adequate 
resources, striving for perfection in everything it does. 
 
Outlook 
 
Our focus remains on a key agenda of localization for some of high cost imports as a 
key de-risking mechanism against future currency depreciation impact on our 
business.  
 
Risk and Concerns  
 
Your Company is faced with risks of different types, each of which need varying 
approaches for mitigation. It has identified each of the risks and implemented 
measures to mitigate such risks with the help of competent senior management and 
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outside specialist consultants. The Company has been handling the risk of the 
competitive forces through its organized business approach, by the strength of its 
reach, superior quality products, safe products and maintaining high standards of 
service levels to its customers. The Company enjoys the advantages of economies of  
 
scale and backward integration. 
 
Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy 
 
The Company has adequate internal control procedures which is commensurate with 
its size and nature of business in order to fairly ensure efficient usage and protection 
of the Company’s resources, accuracy in financial reporting and due compliance of 
statutes and procedures. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is well 
defined in the organization. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the internal 
audit function reports to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board. The 
Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of 
internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, 
accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the 
report of the internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in 
their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. The Company has an 
Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. The internal financial controls as laid down are adequate and were 
operating effectively during the year. 
 
Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance. 
 
The discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance is 
given in Boards Report. 
 
Human Resource Development and   Industrial   Relations 
 
The policies and practices of the Company are designed to empower the Company’s 
workforce, fostering accountability, autonomy, and a conducive workspace built on 
equity and equality. The Company actively promotes and enable employees’ 
engagement both individually and collaboratively, cultivating confidence, self-
determination, and unwavering dedication to their roles. As we undergo a 
transformational journey, we encourage employees to be a part of that learning and 
experiential journey by allowing innovation and bringing positive changes. 
 
Our people are at the heart of how we do business. It is their talent and skills that will 
take us to our dream of becoming a $ 1 billion brand. We continue to invest in 
building best-in-class teams. Recognizing that the workforce will provide critical 
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competitive edge in its growth endeavor, the Company has laid major emphasis on 
recruiting, maintaining and developing its human asset base. 
 
The Company sees its relationship with its employees as critical to the future and 
believes that every employee needs to possessapart from competence, capacity and 
capabilities, sustainable values, current and contemporary which would make them 
useful, relevant and competitive in managing the change constructively for overall 
growth of the organization. To this end, the Company’s approach and efforts are 
directed towards creating a congenial work atmosphere for individual growth, 
creativity and greater dedicated participation in organizational development. In-house 
and external training and instructions are also provided to employees at all levels, 
which help in attaining professional and productive culture by a blend of technology 
and highly skilled manpower. 
 
Cautionary Statement 
 
Statements  in  the  Management  Discussion  and  Analysis  and Directors Report 
describing the Company’s strengths, strategies,  projections  and  estimates,  are  
forward-looking  statements    and    progressive    within    the    meaning    of    
applicable  laws  and  regulations.  The  actual  results  may  vary  from  those  
expressed  or  implied,  depending  upon  economic   conditions,   Government   
Policies   and   other   incidental   factors.   Readers   are   cautioned   not   to   place   
undue reliance on the forward looking statements. 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 

                                                                                                          
                                Sd/-                                 Sd/- 

                                       Naresh Kumar Agarwal                Hanuman Prasad Agarwal                        
                            Chairman & Executive Director               Managing Director 

        (DIN: 01020334)                       (DIN: 00654218) 
 

 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 3rd September, 2024 
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REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Dear Members, 
 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 20th (Twentieth) Annual Report on the 
business and operations of the Company along with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

Kritika Wires Limited (KWL) incorporated in the year 2004 is engaged in the 
manufacturing of all types of Steel wire and galvanized wire for nearly two decades. 
The company is an ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015,  ISO 45001:2018 certified 
company. KWL is having its registered office at 1A, Bonfield Lane, Kolkata-700001 
and manufacturing unit at Sankrail Industrial Park with an installed capacity of 
66,200 MTPA. 
  
The company is run by well experienced entrepreneurs who are in the field of 
manufacturing for nearly three decades. 
  
The Board  consists of members carrying vast experience in the field of 
Management, Finance, Manufacturing and Marketing. The Board is also actively 
involved in the day-to-day operations of the Company along with the support of a 
team of qualified and experienced professional. 
  
Financial Highlights 

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under Section 133 read 
with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’) and 
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as 
applicable. 

Financial highlights of the Company during the year under review are as under: 

 

   Amount in Lakhs (Rs.)  

                        
                        Particulars 

  Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

Total Income 43843.13 28676.09 

Total Expenses 42461.57 27896.11 

Profit or Loss before Extraordinary items 
and Exceptional items 

1381.56 779.98 
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Less: Exceptional Items - - 

Less: Extraordinary Items - - 

Profit before tax 1381.56 779.98 

Less: Current tax 350.53 199.53 

Less: Deferred tax (9.04) (18.13) 

Profit after Tax 1040.07 598.58 

Other Comprehensive Income (11.40) (2.67) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
period/year  

1028.67 595.91 

 
During the year under review, the performance of the Company was satisfactory. 
The total income during the year under review has increased by 52.89.% from Rs. 
28,676.09 lakhs in the previous to Rs. 43,843.13 lakhs. The Profit Before Tax (PBT) 
was Rs. 1,381.56 lakhs against Rs. 779.98 lakhs in the previous year. The Profit 
After Tax (PAT) was Rs. 1,040.07 lakhs against Rs. 598.58 lakhs in the previous 
year. 
 
Change in nature of business 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year. 

Management Discussion and Analysis  
 
The Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business segment 
i.e., manufacturing, exporting and supplying of industrial steel wires and 
galvanized wires. The analysis on the performance of the industry, the Company, 
internal control systems, risk management are presented in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this report.  
 
DIVIDEND 
 
The Board of Directors has not recommended any Dividend for the Financial Year 
2023-24. 
 
Transfer of unpaid & Unclaimed Dividends & Shares to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF): 
 
Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), there are no unpaid & unclaimed dividend 
pending with the Company, hence there is no amount transferred to IEPF. 
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SHARE CAPITAL 
 
The Authorized Share Capital was increased from Rs. 18,50,00,000/- divided into 
9,25,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each to Rs. 54,00,00,000/- divided into 
27,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each, by creation of further 17,75,00,000 
equity shares of Rs. 2/- each. 
 
Equity Shares: 
 
The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March,2024 was Rs.53,25,60,000/-
divided into 26,62,80,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each..  
 
Sweat Equity Shares: 
 
In terms of Sub-rule (13) of Rule 8 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014, the Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares. 
 
Differential Voting Rights:  
 
In terms of Rule 4(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014), the 
Company has not issued any share with Differential Voting Rights. 
 
Employee Stock Options: 
 
In terms of Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014), 
the Company has not issued any Employee Stock Options. 
 
Issue of Bonus Shares: 
 
On 26thOctober, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company approved issuance of 
Bonus Shares in the proportion of 2:1 i.e., 2 (Two)  Bonus equity share of ₹ 2/- fully 
paid-up for every 1 (One) existing fully paid-up equity shares of ₹ 2/- each held by 
the existing members, and the same was approved by members vide postal ballot 
dated 28th November, 2023. 
 
RESERVES 
 
During the year under review, your Directors have not proposed to transfer any 
amount to Reserves. 
 
ANNUAL RETURN 
 
The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 in Form MGT - 7 is in 
accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 and is available on the website of the Company at 
www.kritikawires.com. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 
 
No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till 
the date of this report which may affect the financial position of the Company. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
Conservation of Energy: 
 
Considering the nature of business of the Company, energy does not form a 
significant portion of the cost for the Company yet wherever possible and feasible, 
continuous efforts are being made for conservation of energy and minimizing power 
cost. 
 
Technology Absorption:  
 
We are well aware of latest technology being available in our field of operation. 
Necessary training is imparted to the relevant people from time to time as and when 
required, to make them well acquainted with the latest technology. 
 
Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo: 
 
The Company is continuously in search of new market throughout the globe for 
making its presence worldwide. 
During the year under review, the details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
are as given below: 

(Rs. In lakhs) 
               Particulars Financial Year 2023-

2024 
Financial Year 2022-

2023 
Earning in Foreign Currencies 110.75 254.33 

Expenditure in Foreign Currencies 2016.77 3015.10 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The Company’s Risk Management assessment and policies and process are 
established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limit and controls and to monitor such risk and compliance with 
the same. 
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The risks existing in the internal and external environment are periodically 
identified and reviewed, based on which, the cost of treating risks is assessed and 
risk treatment plans are devised. 
 
 

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS  
 
The Company has not given any loan or provided any guarantee or made any 
investment under provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, 
the particulars of all loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company are 
given in notes to Financial Statements. 
. 
 
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 
 
All transactions entered with Related Parties during the financial year were on an 
arm’s length basis and were in ordinary course of business and the provision of 
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not attracted. There are no materially 
significant related party transactions during the period under review made by the 
Company with Promoters, Directors or other designated person which may have a 
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Thus, disclosure in 
Form AOC- 2 is not required. However, details of all related party transactions are 
given in Notes to Financial Statements. 
 
The related party transactions/contacts/arrangements/transactions entered by the 
Company with its Related Parties are pre-approved by the Audit Committee. All 
Related Parties Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review on a 
quarterly basis. 
 
 
The policy on Related Party Transactions is uploaded on the Company’s website 
www.kritikawires.com.  
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Composition: 
 
The composition of the Board of Directors and its Committees, viz., Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are in accordance with 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015”], wherever 
applicable. 
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Induction to Board: 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Board, in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV 
to the Act and applicable SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 had appointed Mr. Rajiv 
Adukia (DIN: 10371673) and Mrs. Pooja Bacchawat (DIN: 09011940) as an 
Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company with effect from 
26thOctober, 2023, not liable to retire by rotation. Subsequently, the appointment of 
Mr. Rajiv Adukia and Mrs. Pooja Bacchawat was approved by the members of the 
Company through Postal Ballot dated 28th November, 2023. The Independent 
Directors bring to the Board extensive knowledge and experience in areas of 
Governance, Risk Management and Finance. 
 
Retirement by Rotation: 
 
Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two–third of the total 
number of Directors (excluding independent directors) shall be liable to retire by 
rotation. 

The Independent Directors hold office for a fixed term of not exceeding five years 
from the date of their appointment and are not liable to retire by rotation. 

Accordingly, Mr. Ankush Agarwal (DIN: 08071021), Executive Whole-time Director, 
being the longest in the office among the Directors liable to retire by rotation, retires 
from the Board this year and, being eligible, has offered himself for re–appointment. 
 
The brief resume and other details relating to Ankush Agarwal (DIN: 08071021) 
who is proposed to be re-appointed, as required to be disclosed under Regulation 
36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
is incorporated in the annexure to the notice calling ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. 
 
Meetings of the Board: 

During the year under review, 9 (Nine) meetings of the Board of Directors of the 
Company were held on 3rd May 2023, 30th May 2023, 26th July 2023, 14th August 
2023, 6th September 2023, 26th October 2023, 9th November 2023, 20th December 
2023 and 9th February 2024 respectively. The gap between two consecutive 
meetings of the Board of Directors was less than 120 days. 

Meeting of Independent Directors: 

To comply with the provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Independent Directors met once during the Financial Year 2023-2024 on 08th 

12



 

 
March, 2024, without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of 
the management team and interalia reviewed – 

 The performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
 The performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the 

views of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors; and 
 The quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company’s management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

 
Declaration by Independent Directors: 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors that 
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Companies Act, 2013 
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
Familarisation Programme for Independent Directors: 

The Board members are provided with necessary documents / brochures, reports 
and internal policies to enable them to familiarise with the Company’s procedures 
and practices. 
 
Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Committee meetings on business 
and performance updates of the Company including Finance, Sales, Marketing of 
the Company’s major business segments, practices relating to Human Resources, 
global business environment, business strategy and risks involved. 
 
The details of the familiarization programme policy of the Independent Directors are 
available on the website of the Company at www.kritikawires.com.  
 
Board Evaluation: 

The Board of Directors of the Company ensures formation and monitoring of robust 
evaluation framework of the Individual Directors including Chairman of the Board, 
Board as a whole and various Committees thereof and carries out the evaluation of 
the Board, the Committees of the Board and Individual Directors, including the 
Chairman of the Board on annual basis. 
 
Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, 
excluding the Independent Directors being evaluated.  
 
Board Evaluation for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 has been 
completed by the Company internally which included the evaluation of the 
performance of the Board as a whole, Board Committees and Directors individually 
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including the Chairman of the Board and results of the same were shared with the 
Board. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 are: 
 

S. No. Name Designation 
1.  Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal Chairman and Whole-time Director 

2.  Mr. Hanuman Prasad Agarwal Managing Director 

3.  Mr. Ankush Agarwal Wholetime Director 

4.  Mr. Anand Kumar Sharma Chief Financial Officer 

5.  Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

 
 During the year under review, there has been no change in the Key Managerial 
Personnel. 
 
Board Committees: 

There are 4 (four) committees of the Board as on 31st March, 2024: 

a) Audit Committee 

The Board of Directors had constituted Audit Committee in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013and Regulation 18 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. The Committee has 
adopted a Charter for its functioning. The primary objective of the Committee is to 
monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management’s financial reporting 
process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with the highest levels of 
transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.  
 
The composition of Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2024 is as follows: 
 

Name Category Designation 
Mr. Rajiv Adukia Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
Chairman 

Mr. Niraj Jindal Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Hanuman Prasad Agarwal Managing Director Member 
 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary acts as secretary to Committee. 
 

14



 

 
During the year, 6 (six) meetings of Audit Committee were held on 30th May, 
2023,14th August, 2023, 6th September, 2023, 26th October, 2023, 9th November, 
2023 and 9thFebruary, 2024 respectively. 

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Board of Directors had constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. This Committee identifies the 
persons, who are qualified to become Directors of the Company / who may be 
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, 
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and also carries out 
evaluation of every director’s performance. 
 
The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31st March, 
2024 is as follows: 
 

Name Category Designation 
Mr. Rajiv Adukia Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Niraj Jindal Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary acts as secretary to Committee. 
During the year, 1 (One) meeting of Committee was held on 26th October, 2023 

c) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

Your Company has a defined Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The composition of CSR Committee as on 31st March, 2024 is as follows: 
 

Name Category Designation 
Mr. Rajiv Adukia Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Niraj Jindal Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
Mr. Hanuman Prasad Agarwal Managing Director Member 

 
 
 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary acts as secretary to Committee. 
 
During the year, 1 (One) meeting of CSR Committee was held on 07th March,2024. 

d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
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Your Directors have constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31st March, 2024 is 
as follows: 

Name Category Designation 
Mr. Rajiv Adukia Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Niraj Jindal Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary acts as secretary to Committee. 
 
During the year, 1 (One) meeting of Committee was held on 26th October, 2023. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
your Directors state that: 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures; 

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit / loss of the company for that 
period; 

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities; 

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 

company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively; and 

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively. 
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Vigil Mechanish / Whistle Blower Policy 

In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion and in line with 
our Vision of being one of the most respected Companies in India, the Company is 
committed to high standards of Corporate Governance and Stakeholder 
responsibility. The Company has a vigil mechanism that ensures that strict 
confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also that no 
discrimination is made to any person for a genuinely raised concern through its 
Whistle Blower Policy approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in compliance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

The Policy provides adequate protection to the Directors, employees and Business 
associates who report unethical practices and irregularities. Any incidents that are 
reported are investigated and suitable action is taken in line with the Whistle 
Blower Policy. 

Further the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages a whistle blower to 
report genuine concern or grievances and provides for adequate safeguard against 
victimization of the whistle blower who avails of such mechanism as well as direct 
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The functioning of the Vigil 
Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. None of the 
whistle blowers have been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, on 
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has framed 
a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for selection, appointment and 
remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
www.kritikawires.com. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. There was 
no Company which has become or ceased to be Company’s Subsidiary, Joint 
Venture or Associate during the Financial Year 2023-24. 
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DEPOSITS 

During the year under review, your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any 
deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITSADEQUECY 

The Company has laid down an adequate system of internal controls, policies and 
procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of the business, including 
adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 

The current system of internal financial control is aligned with the statutory 
requirements. Effectiveness of internal financial control is ensured through 
management reviews, controlled self-assessment and independent testing by the 
Internal Auditor. 

AUDIT AND ALLIED MATTERS 

Statutory Auditors: 

M/s G.P. Agrawal & Co. (FRN: 302082E) Chartered Accountants, have been 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years to hold office 
from the conclusion of 15th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 20th 
Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024. 

The tenure of existing Statutory Auditors is expiring at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting (AGM). The Board of Directors recommended the appointment of M/s. G.P. 
Agrawal & Co. (FRN: 302082E) Chartered Accountants, for a further period of 5 
(five) years, subject to the approval of members at the ensuing AGM. 

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from 
continuing as Auditors of the Company. 

The Statutory Auditor Report to the members for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. Also 
there has been no instance of fraud reported by the statutory auditors for the 
period under review. 
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Internal Auditors: 
 
As recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors had re-appointed 
M/s. M. Kumar Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 to conduct internal audit of the Company 
and their report on findings is submitted to the Audit Committee on periodic basis. 
 
Secretarial Audit: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, the Board of Directors had re-appointed Mr. Rajesh Ghorawat, Company 
Secretary in Practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 in the prescribed Form MR-
3 is appended as to this Board’s Report. 
 
Cost Audit: 
 
The Company has maintained cost records for the products as specified by the 
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section148 of the Companies Act, 
2013. M/s. Sohan Lal Jalan and Associates, Cost Accountants, has carried out the 
cost audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. 
 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Company adheres to follow the best corporate governance. As per Regulation 
34 read with Schedule V (C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on Corporate Governance along with a 
certificate received from the Statutory Auditors confirming compliance is annexed 
and forms part of the Annual Report. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
 
There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or 
Tribunals during the year under review impacting the going concern status and the 
operations of the Company in future. 
 
DISCLOSURE ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
 
As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH Act’) and Rules made there 
under, your Company have constituted Internal Complaints Committee for 
providing a redressal mechanism pertaining to sexual harassment of women 
employees at workplace. 
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During the year under review, no complaint was filed under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 
REMUNERATION RATIO TO DIRECTORS/KMP/EMPLOYEES 
 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 
197 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as forming part of this report. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company has 
undertaken projects/programs in accordance with the CSR Policy. The details of 
the CSR projects are given as ‘Annexure –A ’ to this Report. 
 
 
OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
Secretarial Standards: 
 
The company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards 
SS-1 and SS-2 with respect to convening of Board Meetings and General Meetings 
during the period under review. 
 
 
 
Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016: 
 
No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence 
the requirement to disclose the details of application made or any proceeding 
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the 
year along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not applicable. 
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APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
The Board of Directors place on record sincere gratitude and appreciation for all the 
employees at all levels for their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and dedication 
during the year. The Board conveys its appreciation for its customers, shareholders, 
suppliers as well as vendors, bankers, business associates, regulatory and 
government authorities for their continued support. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board 

 
     

                                Sd/-                                            Sd/- 
         Naresh Kumar Agarwal                Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 

                     Chairman & Executive Director        Managing Director 
                                            (DIN: 01020334)                     (DIN: 00654218) 

 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 3rd September, 2024 

21



RAJESH GHORAWAT  68, R.K.CHATTERJEE ROAD,     

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY  KASBA BAKULTALA,  3rd FLOOR, 

  KOLKATA-700042 

  MOBILE- 9831189994 

  Email Id-rgadvisory18@gmail.com  
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 
To 
The Members of 
M/s. Kritika Wires Limited 
Unit-201, 2nd Floor  
Bus Terminus and Commercial Complex, 
Plot-BG-12, AA-I 
New Town Pride Hotel Bldg. 
Kolkata – 700 156 

 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Kritika Wires Limited (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2024 (“Audit Period”) generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, to the extent applicable, according to 
the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 
 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”): 
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review); 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review); 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the period under review); 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the period under review); and 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the period under review). 

 
(vi) Other applicable laws generally applicable to the Industry/Company. 

 
a) The Factories Act, 1948; 
b) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936; 
c) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948; 
d) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972; 
e) The Child Labour (Prohibition& Regulations) Act, 1986; 
f) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, read with the Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986; 
g) The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, read with Water (Prevention & 

Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975; 
h) The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 read with Air (Prevention & Control of 

Pollution) Rules, 1982. 
 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) Secretarial Standard-I and II issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
and 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

 
During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above. 
 
In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, I have relied on the information/records 
produced by the Company during the course of my audit and the reporting is limited to that extent. 
 
I further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
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Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.   

 
Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings/committee meetings, agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decisions is carried through while dissenting 
members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 
The Company has submitted the Compliance Certificate to Stock Exchanges with regard to maintenance 
of Structured Digital Database (SDD) pursuant to Regulations 3(5) and 3(6) of SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

 
I further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the 
basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors at their meeting(s), I am of the opinion there are adequate systems and processes in 
place in the Company which is commensurate with its size and operations, to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the audit period, there were no major events occurred which had bearing on 
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, 
except: 

a) During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 17,75,20,000 Equity shares of 
Rs.2/- each as bonus share in the ratio of 2 new equity share for every 1 existing equity share held 
in the Company. 

 
       

Place: Kolkata       
Date: 3rd September, 2024                       UDIN: F007226F001116246 

                                ICSI Peer Review No.: 1992/2022 
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Annexure-I 
 
To 
The Members of 
M/s. Kritika Wires Limited 
Unit-201, 2nd Floor  
Bus Terminus and Commercial Complex, 
Plot-BG-12, AA-I 
New Town Pride Hotel Bldg. 
Kolkata – 700 156 

 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the 
processes and practices, followed by me provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.  

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
  

 
       

Place: Kolkata       
Date: 3rd September, 2024                       UDIN: F007226F001116246 

                                ICSI Peer Review No.: 1992/2022 
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

The information required pursuant to section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given 
hereunder: 

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the company for the financial year are given hereunder: 

Name Designation Remuneration 
paid during 
FY 2023-24* 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Ratio of remuneration to 
median remuneration of 

employees 
(Including Whole-time 

Directors) 
Mr. Hanuman 
Prasad Agarwal 

Managing 
Director 

30.00 11.09 

Mr. Ankush   
Agarwal 

Whole-time 
Director 

20.40 8.67 

Mr. Naresh Kumar 
Agarwal 

Chairman cum 
Whole-time 

Director 

12.00 5.11 

 
*Sitting fees paid to Non-executive Directors during the year is not considered as 
remuneration for ratio calculation purpose. 

 

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial 
year are given hereunder:  Nil 

 
iii. The percentage of increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 

financial year: 39.51% (due to Annual Appraisal). 
 

iv. The number of permanent employees on the role of company as on 31st March, 
2024 is 170 nos., including Executive directors.  
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v. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration : Nil 
 

      
                                         For and on behalf of the Board. 

                                                                                
       Sd/-    Sd/- 
 
 
 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 3rd September, 2024 

Naresh Kumar Agarwal 
Chairman cum Whole-

time Director 
(DIN: 01020334) 

Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 
Managing Director 

(DIN: 00654218) 
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Annexure-A 

 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as prescribed 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

 
The Company’s vision is to consistently demonstrate leadership among its peers, 
in its sector in carrying out its operations in an economically, socially and 
sustainable manner and to unleash the potential of everyone we touch. As we 
seek to do that, we aim at sustainable and inclusive growth, by making 
definitive triple bottom-line (social, economic and environmental) impact. While 
we always had a strong commitment to comply with the law, we seldom hesitate 
to go beyond the limits laid under law and put in an extra effort to achieve the 
status of a responsible corporate citizen in tune with the Company’s values. 
Aiming at creating shared values for all stakeholders, we seek to integrate 
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) into our businesses processes. 
 
The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The CSR Policy provides for 
carrying out CSR activities in respect of those areas as provided in Schedule VII 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed at 
the website of the Company at www.kritikawires.com.  

 
2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

 
As per the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted CSR Committee 
consisting of following directors: 

 

Name of 
Director 

Designation / 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year 

Mr. Rajiv Adukia 
 

Chairman - Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

1 1 

Mr. Shiv Kumar 
Saraff 

Member - Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

1 1 
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Mr. Niraj Jindal 

Member - Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

1 1 

Mr. Hanuman 
Prasad Agarwal 

Member –
Managing 
Director 

1 1 

 
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy 

and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the 
Company: 

 
These details are disclosed on the Company’s website at www.kritikawires.com. 
 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact 
Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 
8, if applicable: 
 
The Company at present is not required to carry out impact assessment in 
pursuance of sub- rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

 
5. (a) Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 479.00 Lacs 

 
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 
135(5):Rs. 9.58lakhs 
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 
the previous financial years: Nil 
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:0.13 lakhs 
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs.9.45 lakhs 
 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than 
Ongoing Project) :Rs.9.50lakhs 
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 9.50 lakhs 
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(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial 
Year (Rs. in 

lakhs) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount 
transferred to Unspent 

CSR Account as per 
Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to Section-135(5) 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

      
9.50 Nil Not Applicable Not Applicable Nil Not 

Applicable 

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 
 
7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not 

Applicable 
 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through 
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No 

 
9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of 

the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable 

 For and on behalf of the Board 
 

         
              Sd/-                              Sd/-                                          

 
 
 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 3rd September, 2024 

 Niraj Jindal 
Director 

(DIN: 09511808) 

Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 
Managing Director 

(DIN: 00654218) 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
The detailed Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2024, has been prepared in compliance to the requirement of Regulation 17 to 27, 
read with Schedule V and Clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46(2) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’). 
 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:  
 
In Kritika Wires Limited we nurture a strong legacy of believing in sound corporate 
practices, based on transparency, accountability and high level of integrity, which 
forms an essential part in the functioning of the Company. We believe that our 
company shall go beyond adherence to regulatory framework. Our corporate structure, 
business, operations and disclosure practices have been strictly aligned to our 
Corporate Governance Philosophy. We believe in system driven performance and 
performance oriented systems. We accord highest priority to these systems and protect 
the interests of all our shareholders, particularly the minority shareholders. The 
Company’s Policies are an extension of its values and reflect its commitment to ethical 
Business practices, integrity and regulatory compliances. 
 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:  
 
The Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility for the strategic supervision 
and overseeing the management performance and governance of the Company on 
behalf of the Members and other stakeholders. It monitors the performance of the 
Company with the objective to create long term value for the Company and its 
stakeholders. The Diversified composition of the Board of Director’s take care of the 
business needs and stakeholders’ interest by providing their valuable guidance and 
expert advice to the Board and the Management on various aspects of business policy 
direction, governance, compliance etc. and play a critical role in resolving strategic 
issues, which enhances the transparency and adds value in the decision-making 
process of the Board of Directors. 
 
Your Company’s Board comprises of the appropriate mix of Executive, Non-Executive 
and Independent Directors including one Women Independent Director to maintain its 
independence. As on 31st March, 2024, the Board consists of Eight Directors out of 
which 3 are Executive Directors and remaining 5 are Non-Executive Directors 
including 4 Independent Directors.  
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Category of Directors 
 

No of Directors 
 

      Executive Director (ED) 
 

3 
Independent Directors 

 

4 
Non-Executive Director 

 

1 
 
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Directors of the Company submit necessary disclosures regarding the 
positions held by them on the Board and/ or the Committees of other companies with 
changes therein, if any, on periodical basis. On the basis of such disclosures, it is 
confirmed that as on 31st March, 2024, none of the Directors of the Company: 
 

 holds Directorship positions in more than 20 (Twenty) companies [including 10 
(Ten) public limited companies and 7 (Seven) listed companies; 

 holds Executive Director position and serves as an Independent Director in 
more than 3 (Three) listed companies; 

 is a Member of more than 10 (Ten) Committees and/ or Chairperson of more 
than 5 (Five) Committees, across all the Indian public limited companies in 
which they are Directors. 

 
The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board 
Meetings held during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the 
number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships/Memberships held by them 
in other public limited (listed) companies as on 31stMarch, 2024 are given below: 
 

Name of 
Director 

 

Category 
 

No. of 
Board 
Meetin

gs 
Attend

ed 
 

Attendanc
e at last 

AGM held 
on  30th 

September
, 2023 

 

Directorsh
ip in other 

public 
(listed) 

companies 
 

No. of Committee 
position held in 

other companies# 

Chairperso
n 

Member 

Mr. Naresh 
Kumar 
Agarwal (DIN: 
01020334) 

Executive 
Director 

(Chairman 
cum Whole-

time Director) 

 
9 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Mr. 
Hanuman 
Prasad 

Executive 
Director 

(Managing 

 
9 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 
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Agarwal (DIN: 
00654218) 

Director) 

Mr. Ankush 
Agarwal (DIN: 
08071021) 

Executive 
Director 

(Whole-time 
Director) 

 
9 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Mr. Sanjeev 
Binani 
(DIN: 
01149866) 

Non-
Executive 
Director 

 
9 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Mr. Shiv 
Kumar Saraff 
(DIN: 
01141657) 

Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

 
9 

 
Yes 

 
0 

  
0 
 

 
0 

Mr. Niraj 
Jindal 
(DIN: 
09511808) 

Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

 
9 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Mr. Rajesh 
Kumar 
Choudhary 
(DIN: 
00675074)* 

Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

 
     3 

 
No 

 
0 

  
       0 

 
 0 

Mrs. Radhika 
Vyas (DIN: 
08139930)* 

Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Women 
Director 

 
3 

 
No 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Mr. Rajiv 
Adukia 
(DIN:103716
73)** 

Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

 
3 

 
No 

 
0 
 

 

 
0 

 
0 

Mrs. Pooja 
Bacchawat 
(DIN: 
09011940)** 

Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Women 
Director 

 
3 

 
No 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

* resigned w.e.f.14th August, 2023 
# Committees considered are Audit Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship 
Committee. 
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** Appointed w.e.f. 26th October, 2023 
 
Mr. Rajiv Adukia (DIN:10371673) and Mrs. Pooja Bacchawat (DIN:09011940), were 
appointed w.e.f. 26th October 2023 on the Board of the Company. 
 
Meetings of the Board of Directors 
 
During the year under review, 9 (Nine) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 
3rd May 2023, 30th May 2023, 26th July 2023, 14th August 2023, 6th September 2023, 
26th October 2023, 9th November 2023, 20th December 2023 and 9th February 2024 
respectively. The gap between any two meetings does not exceed 120 days. 
 
Directorships in Listed Entities as on 31st March, 2024 
 
None of the Directors are holding Directorship in other listed entities as on 31stMarch, 
2024. 
 
Shareholding of Directors 
 
Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on 31stMarch, 2024 
are given below: 
 

Name Category Number of Shares 
Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal Executive Director 12600000 

Mr. Hanuman Prasad 
Agarwal 

Executive Director 18087360 

Mr. Sanjeev Binani Non-Executive Director 150000 
 
 
Disclosures of Relationships between directors 
 
No Director is related to any other Director on the Board except Mr. Naresh Kumar 
Agarwal, Mr. Hanuman Prasad Agarwal and Mr. Ankush Agarwal in terms of the 
definition of “Relative” given under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors  
 
The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board 
of Directors as required in the context of the Company’s business and that the said 
skills are available with the Board Members:  
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i) Knowledge on Company’s businesses (Industrial Steel and Galvanized Wires 
manufacturing and marketing), policies and culture (including the Mission, 
Vision and Values) major risks/threats and potential opportunities and 
knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates; 

ii) Behavioral skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills 
to contribute effectively to the growth of the Company, Leadership & effective 
communication qualities; 

iii) Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex 
Management, Administration, Decision Making; 

iv) Financial and Management skills; 
v) Technical / Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to 

Company’s business. 
 
The eligibility of a person to be appointed as a Director of the Company is dependent 
on whether the person possesses the requisite skill sets identified by the Board as 
above and whether the person is a proven leader in running a business that is relevant 
to the Company’s business or is a proven academician in the field relevant to the 
Company’s business. 
 
Board Procedure  
 
The Board of Directors convenes regular meetings to discuss and review strategic, 
operational and financial matters. It adheres to a formal schedule and has a 
predefined set of reserved matters for its decision-making. These include approving 
interim and preliminary financial statements, budgets, the annual financial plan, 
significant contracts, capital investments and strategic decisions such as business 
restructuring, debt management and human resources. 
 
Board Meetings Notice is circulated to the members of the Board, well in advance. The 
agenda is circulated well in advance to the Board members, along with comprehensive 
back-ground information on the items in the agenda to enable the Board members to 
take informed decisions. The agenda and related information are circulated in 
electronic form through their email, which is easily accessible to the Board members. 
The Board ensures that all relevant information is provided to directors before each 
meeting. The information as required under Part A of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing 
Regulations is also made available to the Board, wherever applicable, for their 
consideration. The Company adheres to the Secretarial Standard-1 on the Board and 
Committee Meetings as prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
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Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management  
 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management (The Code). The Code has been communicated to the Directors and 
Senior Management. The Code has also been posted on the Company’s website at 
www.kritikawires.com. All Board of Directors and Senior Management have confirmed 
compliance with code for the year ended 31stMarch, 2024.  
 
Apart from receiving remuneration, if any, that they are entitled to under the Act as 
Non-Executive Directors and reimbursement of expenses incurred in the discharge of 
their duties, none of the Non-Executive Directors has any other material pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, its Promoters or its Directors and its 
Senior Management.  
 
The Senior Management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board 
confirming that there is no material financial and/or commercial transactions between 
them and the Company that could have potential conflict of interest with the Company 
at large.  
 
Independent Directors and Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 
 
Independent Directors play an eminent role in the governance processes of the Board. 
By virtue of their varied expertise and experience, they enrich the Board’s 
decision‑making and prevent possible conflicts of interest that may emerge in such 
decision-making and safeguards the interests of all stakeholders. 
 
The appointment of Independent Directors is carried out in a structured manner in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The 
Nomination &Remuneration Committee identifies candidates based on certain laid 
down criteria and takes into consideration the need for diversity on the Board and 
accordingly makes its recommendations to the Board of Directors. 
 
Certificates have been obtained from the Independent Director confirming their 
position as Independent Director on the Board of the Company in accordance with 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Based on the 
declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board confirms that the 
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in these regulations and that they 
are Independent of the Management.  
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The Company also has a structured Familiarization framework for the Independent 
Directors. It takes due steps for familiarizing the Independent Directors with the 
Company’s procedures and practices, by providing them the necessary documents, 
reports and internal policies. The familiarization programme for Independent Directors 
is given on the website at www.kritikawires.com. 
 
As stipulated by Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149(8) 
read with Clause VII of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of 
the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 08th March, 2024 during the 
Financial Year, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors.  
 
The Independent Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of Non-Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole, performance of the Chairman of the Company, 
taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors and 
assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 
Company’s Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform their duties. 
 
3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:  
 
Audit Committee acts in accordance with the terms and reference specified by the 
Board which includes the recommending on the appointment, re-appointment, terms 
of appointment, replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of 
audit fees, review and monitor the auditor’s performance and effectiveness of the audit 
process, financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, evaluation of internal financial control 
and risk management system, any subsequent modification of transaction of the 
Company’s related party, monitoring the end use of the fund raised through public 
offers and related matters.  
 
Composition  
 

Name of the Director Category Designation 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar 
Choudhary * 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Rajiv Adukia** 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 
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Mr. Niraj Jindal 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Hanuman Prasad 
Agarwal 

Executive Director Member 

* resigned w.e.f. 14th August, 2023 
.** appointed w.e.f. 26th October, 2023 
 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the 
Company and acts as secretary to Committee.  

 
During the year, 6 (six) meetings of Audit Committee were held on 30th May, 2023,14th 

August, 2023, 6th September, 2023, 26th October, 2023, 9th November, 2023 and 9th 

February, 2024 respectively. 
S. 

No. 
Name of the Director 

 
Number of Audit Committee Meetings 

attended during the Financial Year 
ended 31stMarch, 2024 

1. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Choudhary 3 
2. Mr. Rajiv Adukia 3 
2. Mr. Niraj Jindal 6 
3. Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 6 
4. Mr. Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 6 

 
The Internal Auditors and the representative of the Statutory Auditors also attended 
the Audit Committee Meetings. The Internal Audit Report is directly placed to the 
Audit Committee.  
 
The minutes of Audit Committee meetings are placed in the Board for noting.  
 
Terms of Reference 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with Regulation 18(3) read 
with Schedule II, Part - C of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are briefly described below:  
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 To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient 
and credible;  

 To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the 
Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company; 

 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors; 

 Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s 
report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular 
reference to:  

 
a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to 

be included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of 
section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the 
same; 

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by Management; 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings; 

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements; 

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; 
g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report, if any.  

 
 To review with management, the quarterly financial statements before submission 

to the board for approval; 

 Reviewing, with the Management, the statement of uses / application of funds 
raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take steps in the matter;  

 To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance and 
effectiveness of the Audit Process; 

 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with 
related parties; 

 Scrutiny of Inter-corporate loans and Investments; 

 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 
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 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 
adequacy of the internal control systems; 

 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the 
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;  

 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;  

 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature 
and scope of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern; 

 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) 
and creditors; 

 To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;  

 Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, 
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;  

 To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/ investment by the 
company to its subsidiary exceeding 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the 
subsidiary, whichever is lower, including existing loans / advances / investments; 

 To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes 
involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its 
shareholders; 

 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the 
audit committee. 

 
Review of information by Audit Committee 

 
 To review the following: 

a) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of 
operations;  

b) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the 
statutory auditors;  

c) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and  
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d) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal 

auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee.  
e) statement of deviations:  

 quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, 
if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).  

 annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).  

 

4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted by the Board in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.  
 
Composition  
 

Name of the Director Category Designation 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar 
Choudhary* 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Rajiv Adukia** 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Niraj Jindal 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

* resigned w.e.f. 14th August, 2023 
** appointed w.e.f. 26th October, 2023 
 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the 
Company and acts as secretary to Committee.  
 
 
 
 
 

41



 
One Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the 
Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024 on 26th October, 2023. 
 
S.  
No.  

Name of the Director  
 

Number of Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee Meetings attended during the 
Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024 

1. Mr. Rajiv Adukia* 1 
2. Mr. Niraj Jindal 1 
3. Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 1 

4         Mr. Rajesh Kumar 
Choudhary (resigned w.e.f. 
14th August, 2023) 

0 

appointed w.e.f. 26th October, 2023 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee include:  
 
 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommended to the Board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration of the Directors, Key managerial Personnel and other employees;  

 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and 
the board of directors;  

 Identification of person who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and 
recommended to the Board their appointment and removal;  

 Devising a policy on Board diversity;  

 Deciding whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent 
director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent 
directors; 

 Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 
management; 

 Evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board upon the 
appointment of an independent Director. Based on this evaluation, preparing a 
description of the role and capabilities required of an independent Director. The 
recommended candidate for the position of an independent Director should possess 
the identified capabilities. The Committee may utilize external agencies, consider 
candidates from diverse backgrounds, and take into account the time commitments 
of the candidates when identifying suitable candidates. 
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Performance Evaluation 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and Guidance Note on 
Board Evaluation issued by the SEBI, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
devised a criteria for the evaluation of the performance of Directors including 
Independent Directors. An indicative list of factors on which evaluation was carried out 
includes experience, attendance, acquaintance with the business, effective 
participation, strategy, contribution and independent judgement. 
 
During the financial year 2023-24, the performance of the independent directors was 
evaluated by the entire Board, excluding the director being evaluated.  
 
The Independent Directors at their separate meeting reviewed the performance of: 
Non-Independent Directors, Chairman and the Board as a whole, and the quality, 
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their 
duties. 
 
The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall 
engagement of the Board and its Committees with the Company. 
 
The performance evaluation process for the Financial Year 2023-24 has been 
completed. 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
 
The Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for its Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. The Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee formulates and reviews Nomination and Remuneration Policy and also lays 
down the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, Independence of 
Director and Board diversity. The Policy laid down the factors for determining 
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees.  
 
The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Nomination and 
Remuneration policy may be referred to at the Company’s official website at the web 
link www.kritikawires.com. 
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A. Remuneration to Executive Directors:  
 
The Executive Directors are paid salary as per agreement, considered by Board & 
Committee. In addition, the Company provides with certain perquisites, allowances 
and benefits in accordance with terms of contract, if any. In the event that there is no 
breach of the terms of the agreement, if any, by the Executive Director, the Company 
exercise the discretion to terminate his/her services during the terms of agreement, 
without assigning any reason thereof, then and in that event, the Executive Director 
may be paid a compensation of a sum which shall not exceed the remuneration which 
he/she would have earned.  
 
B. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors:  
 
The Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for 
attending the meetings of the Board and/or Committee thereof with the discretion of 
Board. The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, in their individual 
capacity, did not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company 
during the financial year 2023-24. 
 
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other Employees:  
 
The objective of the Policy is to have a compensation framework that will reward and 
retain talent. The remuneration will be such as to ensure the correlation of 
remuneration to performance is clear and meet appropriate performance benchmark. 
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other Employees 
will involve a balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long term 
performance objectives of the employees in line with the working of the Company and 
its goal.  
 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee recommend the remuneration of KMP 
and other Employees. 
 
D. Remuneration paid or payable to Directors for the year ended 31stMarch, 
2024 are as follows: 
 
Executive Directors (EDs): 
 

Name of the 
Directors 

Salary 
(Rs.) 

Perquisites(Rs.) Others(Rs.) Total (Rs.) 

Mr. Hanuman 
Prasad Agarwal 

30,00,000 0 0 30,00,000 
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Mr. Ankush Agarwal 20,40,000 0 0 20,40,000 
Mr. Naresh Kumar 
Agarwal 

12,00,000 0 0 12,00,000 

 
Non-Executive Directors (NEDs):  
 

Name of the Directors Sitting Fees (Rs.) Commission (Rs.) Total (Rs.) 
    
Rajiv Adukia 40,000/- 0/- 40,000/- 
    
    

 
5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:  
 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
Composition  
 

Name of the Director Category Designation 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar 
Choudhary* 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Rajiv Adukia** 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Niraj Jindal 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

* resigned w.e.f 14th August, 2023 
** appointed w.e.f 26th October, 2023 
 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the 
Company and acts as secretary to Committee. During the year, 1 (One) meeting of 
Committee was held on 26th October, 2023. 
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S.No. Name of the Director 

 
Number of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee Meetings attended during the 
Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024 

1.  Mr. Rajiv Adukia 1 
2.  Mr. Niraj Jindal 1 
3.  Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 1 
4.  Mr. Rajesh Kumar 

Choudhary 
0 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
The terms of reference and roles of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as 
framed in line with provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013, 
are as under: 
 
 To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including 

complaints related to transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual 
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new / duplicate certificates, 
general meetings etc. 

 To review measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
 To review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of 

various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
 To review of various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing 

the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend 
warrants / annual reports / statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company. 

 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer of the 
Company and responsible for ensuring compliance with the requirements of Securities 
Laws. The Company has received no complaints during the Financial Year. 
 
 
6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE: 
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the 
Board in compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
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Composition 
 

Name of the Director Category Designation 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar 
Choudhary* 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Rajiv Adukia** 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Niraj Jindal 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

Mr. Hanuman Prasad 
Agarwal 

Executive Director Member 

* resigned w.e.f 14th August, 2023 
** appointed w.e.f 26th October, 2023 
One Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held during the 
Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024 on 7th March, 2024. 
 
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the 
Company and acts as secretary to Committee.  
 

S. No. Name of the Director 
 

Number of Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee Meetings attended during the 

Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024 
1.  Mr. Rajiv Adukia 1 
2.  Mr. Niraj Jindal 1 
3.  Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 1 
4.  Mr. Hanuman Prasad 

Agarwal 
1 

5.  Mr. Rajesh Kumar 
Choudhary 

0 

 
The Committee oversees, inter-alia, corporate social responsibility and other related 
matters as may be referred by the Board of Directors and discharges the roles as 
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prescribed under Section 135 of the Act which includes formulating and 
recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy indicating 
the activities to be undertaken by the Company, as per Schedule VII of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred and 
monitoring the CSR Policy of the Company. 

 
7. GENERAL BODYMEETINGS:  
 
a) Location and time where last three AGMs were held: 
 
The details of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) of the Company held as 
under: 
 

Financial 
Year 

 

Date and Time 
 

Venue 
 

No of Special 
Resolutions 

passed 
2022-23 30th September, 

2023 
Video Conference (V.C) 
/ Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM) 

4 (four)  
a) Re-appointment 

of Mr. Hanuman 
Prasad Agarwal 
(DIN: 00654218) 
as the Managing 
Director; 

b) Re-appointment 
of Mr. Ankush 
Agarwal 
(DIN:08071021) 
as the Whole-
time Director of 
the Company: 

c) Re-appointment 
of Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Agarwal 
(DIN:01020334) 
as the Chairman 
cum Whole-time 
Director; 

d) Alteration of 
Memorandum of 
Association 

2021-22 29th July, 2022 at Unit No. 201, 2nd Floor, 1 (One) -  
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2.00 p.m.  Bus Terminus & 

Commercial Complex, 
Plot-BG-12, AA-I, New 
Town, Pride Hotel 
Building, Kolkata – 
700156 

Alteration of 
Capital Clause of 
Memorandum of 
Association of the 
Company. 

2020-21 30th September, 
2021 at 11.00 a.m. 

1A, Bonfield Lane, 
Mezanine Floor, Kolkata 
- 700001 

- 

 
b) Extraordinary General Meeting:  

 
Apart from the Annual General Meeting, no Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the 
Company was held during the Financial Year 2023-24. 
 
c) Postal Ballot 
 
The following Special Resolution was passed during financial year 2023-24 through 
postal ballot. 
Date of passing of Special 
Resolution 

Agenda 

28th November, 2023 Issue of Bonus Shares 
28th November, 2023 Appointment of Mrs. Pooja Bacchawat (DIN: 

09011940) as an Independent Women Director. 
28th November, 2023 Appointment of Mr. Rajiv Adukia (DIN: 10371673) as 

an Independent Director. 
 
As on the date of this report, no Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through 
Postal Ballot. 
 
8. MEANS OFCOMMUNICATION:  
 
The quarterly / annual financial results are normally published in “Financial Express” 
(English) and “Aarthik Lipi” (Bengali). The financial results, shareholding pattern and 
other requirements under Regulation 17 to 27 and 46(2)(b) to (i) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, wherever applicable, were uploaded on the websites of the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) at www.nseindia.com and the Company at 
www.kritikawires.com. 
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9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:  
 

i. The particulars of the Annual General Meeting for the year ended 31stMarch, 2024 
is as under: 

 
Date of 20thAnnual 
General Meeting 

Venue 
 

Time 
 

30th September, 2024 Annual General Meeting is being 
conducted through Video-

Conferencing/Other Audio-
Visual Means 

1:00 p.m 

 
ii. Financial Calendar: Our tentative calendar for declaration of results for the 

financial year 2024-25 are given below: 
 
Financial Calendar  
 

Period  
 

Declaration of Unaudited  
Results  

1st Quarter  
 

April 1 to June 30  
 

On or before August 14, 
2024 

2nd Quarter  
 

July 1 to September 30  
 

On or before November 
14,2024 

3rd Quarter  
 

October 1 to December 
31  
 

On or before February 14, 
2025 

Audited Financial 
Results  
 

January 1 to March 31  
 

On or before May 30, 2025 

 
iii. The Company’s financial year begins on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the 

following year. 
 

iv. Dates of Book Closure: As mentioned in the Notice of this AGM. 
 

v. Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable. 
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vi. Listing on Stock Exchange: The Company’s Shares are currently listed and 

traded on the following Stock Exchanges: 
 

 
Name of the Stock 
Exchange  

Address  
 

Stock Code / 
Symbol 

National Stock 
Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE) 

National Stock Exchange of 
India Ltd. 
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E) 
Mumbai – 400 051 

ISIN - NE00Z501029, 
Symbol – KRITIKA 

 
Listing Fees as applicable have been paid. 

vii. Market Price Data:  
 

Monthly High and Low price of shares traded at National Stock Exchange of India 
Ltd during the Financial Year 2022-23are as: 

 
Period Monthly Low (Rs.) Monthly High 

(Rs.) 
Apr’2023 8.15 14.30 
May’2023 11.45 18.00 
Jun’2023 16.15 21.00 
Jul’2023 15.00 17.20 
Aug’2023 15.10. 19.65 
Sep’2023 18.00 22.40 
Oct’2023 19.70 23.45 
Nov’2023 20.00 29.20 
Dec’2023 9.90 29.25 
Jan’2024 10.35 12.90 
Feb’2024 11.90 18.60 
Mar’2024 16.75 21.60 

 
viii. Suspension of Securities of the Company from Stock Exchange: The Securities 

of the Company are not suspended from trading on the stock exchange. 
 

ix. Registrars and Share Transfer Agents: All matters pertaining to Share Transfers 
/ Transmissions are being handled by M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, the 
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents.  
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Address: M/s.Link Intime India Private Limited 
     C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park 

    Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg  
    Vikhroli (West) Mumbai – 400 083  

Contact: +91 98315 78906 (Kolkata Office)  
   

x. Share Transfer System: The Company has in place a proper and adequate share 
transfer system. The Company formed a Committee known as “Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee” to process share transfer request as delegated by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company was appointed to ensure that 
the share transfer system is maintained in physical as well as electronic form. 
 

xi. Dematerialization of Shareholding and Liquidity: 26,62,80,000 i.e.,100% of the 
paid-up Share Capital had been dematerialized, as at 31stMarch, 2024. 

 
A reconciliation of share capital, audited by Practicing Company Secretary (PCS) is 
submitted to the Stock Exchanges on a quarterly basis in terms of regulation 76 of 
SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018. 
 

xii. Address for Correspondence:  
 

Kritika Wires Limited 
Registered Office Address: 1A, Bonfield Lane, Mezanine Floor, Kolkata – 700001 
Corporate Office Address: Unit-201, 2nd Floor, Bus Terminus and Commercial 
Complex, Plot-BG-12, AA-I, New Town Pride Hotel Bldg., Kolkata – 700 156 
Email: compliance@kritikawires.com 
Website:www.kritikawires.com 

 
 
xiii. Distribution of Shareholding: 
 

The shareholding distribution of equity shares as on 31st March, 2024 is given 
below: 
 

No of shares 
(Range) 

No of 
shareholders 

No of Equity 
sharesheld 

Percentage of 
holding 

1-500 33745 4720728 1.7728 
501-1000 6188 4747553 1.7829 
1001-2000 3956 5867960 2.2037 
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2001-3000 1916 5241950 1.9686 
3001-4000 589 2072096 0.7782 
4001-5000 491 2287360 0.8590 
5001-10000 897 6396774 2.4023 

10001-********** 712 234945579 88.2325 
    

Total 48494 266280000 100.0000 
 

Categories of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2024:  
 

Category No of Shares held % of shareholdings 
Promoters’ Holding 193187360 72.5504 
Non-Promoters’ Holding 73092640 27.4496 
Total 266280000 100.00 

 
xiv. Credit Ratings: During the year under review, Infomerics Valuation And Rating 

Pvt. Ltd. has given the credit rating of “IVR BBB / Stable” on the credit facilities 
of the Company. 

 
10. DISCLOSURES: 
 

a. All the related party transactions have been entered into are in the ordinary 
course of business and at arms’ length basis. There are no materially significant 
related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of 
the Company. The Company has the Related Party Transaction Policy which has 
been hosted on the website of the Company at www.kritikawires.com. In any 
case, disclosures regarding the transactions with related parties are given in the 
notes to the accounts of Financial Statements. 

b. The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 as well as the other applicable regulations and guidelines of 
SEBI and other statutory authorities. Consequently, there are no strictures or 
penalties imposed on the Company for any matter relating to capital markets 
during the last three years. 

c. The Company is committed to conduct its business in accordance with applicable 
laws, rules and regulations. The Company promotes ethical behaviour in its 
operations and has a Vigil mechanism which is overseen through the Audit 
Committee. This policy has been posted on the website of the Company.  

d. The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements under the 
applicable provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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e. The Company has adopted Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries which 

has been placed in the website of the Company www.kritikawires.com.  

f. The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) during the financial 
year 2023-24. 

g. The Company has received a certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice 
certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

h. The Board had accepted all recommendation of mandatory committees during the 
financial year 2023-24. 

i. Details of total fees for all services, paid by the Company to the Statutory 
Auditors have been provided under Notes to the Financial Statement forming part 
of this Annual Report. 

j. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:  

• number of complaints filed during the financial year - NIL  

• number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - N.A.  

• number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year – NIL 

k. Pursuant to point 10(m) of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
Company hereby confirms that during the Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024, 
no loan /advances in nature of loan are provided to firms/ Companies in which 
the directors of the Company are interested. 

l. The Company does not have any subsidiary, hence, details with respect to date 
and place of incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory 
auditors of such subsidiaries, are not applicable. 

m. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable 
Accounting Standards and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
related rules, as amended from time to time. 

n. The Company has complied with the requirements as specified in the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable. 

o. Disclosure on discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule 
II of the Listing Regulations: 

 Shareholders’ Rights  

The Company is committed to ensuring transparency and timely 
communication with its shareholders and stakeholders regarding its financial 
performance and significant events. In line with this commitment, the 
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Company publishes its half-yearly (including quarterly) financial performance 
in newspapers, providing wider access to this information. These financial 
updates are also promptly posted on the Company’s website, allowing 
shareholders and other interested parties to access the information easily. 

 Modified opinion in Audit Report 

The Statutory Auditors have provided an unmodified opinion in their Audit 
Reports on the financials the Company for the year ended 31stMarch, 2024.  

 Reporting of Internal Auditor  

Internal Audit Report are directly to the Audit Committee. 
 

 
11. CODE OF CONDUCT:  
 
The Board of Directors has laid down / adopted a Code of Conduct for all Board 
members and all employees in management grade of the Company. The Code requires 
Directors and Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically & with integrity and conduct 
themselves in professional, courteous and respectful manner. The Code of Conduct is 
posted on the website of the Company. All Board members and senior management 
personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. Chief Executive Officer’s (MD) 
certificate regarding compliance of the Code of Conduct by the Directors and Senior 
Management is appended to this Report. 
 
12. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM THE AUDITORS:  
 
The Company has obtained a certificate from Secretarial Auditors of the Company, 
regarding the compliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance as required 
under the SEBI Listing Regulations. The same is annexed to this Report. 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 

 
        Sd/-  Sd/- 

 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 3rd September, 2024 

Naresh Kumar Agarwal 
Chairman cum Whole-

time Director 
(DIN: 01020334) 

Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 
Managing Director 

(DIN: 00654218) 
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CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
In accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that all the Directors and Senior 
Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct, as applicable to them, for the Financial Year ended 31stMarch, 2024. 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
Kritika Wires Limited 

 
 

          Sd/- 
 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 3rd September, 2024 

 Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 
Managing Director

(DIN: 00654218)
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Certification by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 

(Under Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015) 

 
1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s 

affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable 
laws and regulations. 

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
Company’s code of conduct. 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for 
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control 
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to 
the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken 
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: 
a) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 

year, if any; 
b) significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that 

the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
c) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a 
significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 
Kritika Wires Limited 

 
       Sd/- Sd/- 

    
 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 3rd September, 2024 

Anand Kumar Sharma 
Chief Financial Officer 

PAN: BONPS9141E 

Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 
Managing Director

(DIN: 00654218)
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RAJESH GHORAWAT  68, R.K.CHATTERJEE ROAD,     

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY  KASBA BAKULTALA,  3rd FLOOR, 

  KOLKATA-700042 

  MOBILE- 9831189994 

  Email Id-rgadvisory18@gmail.com  
 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 
 

To 
The Members of 
M/s. Kritika Wires Limited 
Unit-201, 2nd Floor  
Bus Terminus and Commercial Complex, 
Plot-BG-12, AA-I 
New Town Pride Hotel Bldg. 
Kolkata – 700 156 

 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of M/s. Kritika Wires Limited ( CIN: L27102WB2004PLC098699) (hereinafter referred to as 
‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary 
and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 
2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority. 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in 
Company* 

1. Mr. Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 00654218 6th March, 2018 
2. Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal 01020334 30th September, 2008 
3. Mr. Shiv Kumar Saraff 01141657 18th February, 2022 
4. Mr. Sanjeev Binani 01149866 31st May, 2004 
5. Mr. Ankush Agarwal 08071021 6th March, 2018 
6. Mr. Niraj Jindal 09511808 18th February, 2022 
7. Mr. Rajiv Adukia 10371673 26th October, 2023 
8. Mrs. Pooja Bachhawat 09011940 26th October, 2023 

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal. 
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RAJESH GHORAWAT  68, R.K.CHATTERJEE ROAD,     

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY  KASBA BAKULTALA,  3rd FLOOR, 

  KOLKATA-700042 

  MOBILE- 9831189994 

  Email Id-rgadvisory18@gmail.com  
 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion based 
on the verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.               

      

 
       

Place: Kolkata       
Date: 3rd September, 2024                   UDIN: F007226F001116334 

                           ICSI Peer Review No.: 1992/2022 
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RAJESH GHORAWAT  68, R.K.CHATTERJEE ROAD,     

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY  KASBA BAKULTALA,  3rd FLOOR, 

  KOLKATA-700042 

  MOBILE- 9831189994 

  Email Id-rgadvisory18@gmail.com  
 

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
To 
The Members of 
M/s. Kritika Wires Limited 
Unit-201, 2nd Floor  
Bus Terminus and Commercial Complex, 
Plot-BG-12, AA-I 
New Town Pride Hotel Bldg. 
Kolkata – 700 156 
 
I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kritika Wires Limited (“the 
Company”), for the year ended on 31st March, 2024, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to 
(i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”). 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My 
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the 
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-
mentioned Listing Regulations, as applicable. 
 
I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

 
       

Place: Kolkata       
Date: 3rd September, 2024                   UDIN: F007226F001116059 

                           ICSI Peer Review No.: 1992/2022 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To The Members of Kritika Wires Limited 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinion  
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kritika Wires Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a material of 
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
the “financial statements”).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at 31st March, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements. 
 
Key Audit Matter 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
We have determined that there is no key audit matter to communicate in our report. 
 
Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the Board’s Report (but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon). The Board’s Report is expected to be made available to 
us after the date of this auditor’s report. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.) 
To The Members of Kritika Wires Limited 

 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
When we read the Board’s Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

 
Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements: 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.) 
To The Members of Kritika Wires Limited 

 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine that 
there is no key audit matter to communicate in our report. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 
we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 
and 4 of the order. 

 
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the 
matters stated in the paragraph 2 (h) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

(c) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters 
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under 
Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 3(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

(g) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st 
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(h) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters 
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under 
Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

(i) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. 

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position; 
 

64



Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.) 
To The Members of Kritika Wires Limited 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to 
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

 
(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement. 

 
v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

 
vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and as per information 

and explanation provided to us, the Company has used accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 
2024 which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same has enabled throughout the year for all relevant transactions so 
recorded in the relevant software except that the feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the period 1st April, 2023 to 11th 
April, 2023. 

 
Further, for the period where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled was 
operative throughout the year thereafter and during the course of our audit 
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 
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 As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from 1st April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024. 
 

4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is 
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

  
 For G. P. Agrawal & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm Regn. No. 302082E 
  
 Sd/-  
 (CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) 

 Partner 
 Membership No.066421 
 UDIN: 24066421BKCOXS2481 
Place:  Kolkata  
Dated: The 28th day of May, 2024  
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Statement referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on ‘Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of Kritika Wires Limited on the 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024: 
 

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Asset. 
 
(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the 

management during the year. Based on our review, no material discrepancies were 
noticed in respect of Property, Plant and Equipment physically verified during the 
year and the periodicity of such physical verification is reasonable having regard to 
the size of the Company and nature of its assets. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable 
properties(other than cases where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)  are held in the name of the 
company.  

 
(d)  The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during 

the year. 
 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at 31st March, 2024 for holding any benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 

 
ii. (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable 

intervals and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by 
the management is appropriate. Based on our review, no discrepancies have been 
noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to book records. 

 
(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 

rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets and the 
quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in 
agreement with the books of account of the Company. The Company has not been 
sanctioned any working capital limit from financial institution. 

 
iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based 

on our examination of records, the Company has not made investments in, provided 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iii) (a) to (f) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company. 
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iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and as per records examined 
by us, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
there are no loans, guarantees and securities granted or investment made in respect of 
which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable. Therefore, reporting 
under clause (iv)of paragraph 3of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
v. The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or 

any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. The directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, 
reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the said order are not applicable to the Company.  
 

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect 
of products where pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government, the 
maintenance of cost records has been prescribed under section 148(1) of the Act and are 
of the opinion that prime facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We, however, as not required, have not made a detailed examination of 
such records. 

 
vii. (a)According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the books of account, and records, the company is regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 31st March, 2024 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.   

 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and as per records 
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which 
are outstanding on account of any dispute. 
 

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
 

ix. (a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

 
(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority.  
 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the previous 
year for the purposes for which they were obtained.  
 
(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised 
on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 
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(e) The Company has no subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence, reporting 
under clause (ix)(e) and (f) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the company. 
 
(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the 
year and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
xi. (a) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, no fraud by the Company and on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
examination of the records of the Company as provided to us, the Company has not 
received any whistle blower complaint during the year. 
 

xii. The Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such 
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

 
xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 

with the size and the nature of its business. 
 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of 
our audit procedures. 

 
xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, provisions of 
section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 
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xvi. (a) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, clause (xvi) (a) to (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
 (b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined 
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly 
reporting under clause (xvi)(d)of paragraph 3of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.  
 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.  

 
xx. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 

other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to 
the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 
of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
is not applicable for the year. 

 
(b) There are no ongoing projects under CSR requiring a transfer to a Special account 
within a period of 30 days from the end of the said financial year in compliance with 
the provision of section 135(6) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx)(b) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable for the year. 
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xxi. The company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Therefore, 
the provision of clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

  For G. P. Agrawal & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm Regn. No. 302082E 
  
                                   Sd/- 
 (CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) 

 Partner 
Place:  Kolkata Membership No.066421 
Dated: The 28th day of May, 2024 UDIN: 24066421BKCOXS2481 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kritika Wires 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Act.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.  
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 
 
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 
 
(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 
 
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.  
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
 
Opinion  
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

 For G. P. Agrawal & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm Regn. No. 302082E 
  
  
 (CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) 

 Partner 
Place:  Kolkata Membership No. 066421 
Dated: The 28th day of May, 2024 UDIN: 24066421BKCOXS2481 
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(Rs. in lakh)
 Particulars  Note 

No. 
 As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st 

March, 2023 

I ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2(a) 2,408.64                            1,443.31                                     
Capital work in progress 2(b) 77.20                                 339.12                                        
Investment property 3 133.00                               133.00                                        
Financial assets

(i) Other  financial assets 4 120.21                               1,252.99                                     
Deferred tax assets (Net) 15 24.55                                 11.68                                          

Total non-current assets 2,763.60                            3,180.10                                     

Current assets
Inventories 5 4,380.00                            4,162.56                                     
Financial assets

  (i)  Investments 6 -                                     115.00                                        
     (ii) Trade receivables 7 4,197.56                            3,595.11                                     
     (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8(a) 1,893.36                            138.75                                        
     (iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8(b) 455.56                               29.32                                          
     (v) Other current financial assets 9 182.42                               44.28                                          
Current tax assets (Net) 10 62.78                                 40.89                                          
Other current assets 11 1,318.13                            525.07                                        

Total Current Assets 12,489.81                          8,650.98                                     

Total assets 15,253.41                    11,831.08                            

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 5,325.60                            1,775.20                                     
Other equity 13 3,108.09                            5,629.82                                     

Total equity 8,433.69                            7,405.02                                     

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 1.18                                   224.62                                        
Provisions 16 86.94                                 66.05                                          

Total non-current liabilities 88.12                                 290.67                                        

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
    (i) Borrowings 17 4,008.07                            1,976.47                                     
    (ii) Trade payables 18
         -Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
            small enterprises 31.23                                 -                                             
         -Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
           enterprises and small enterprises 2,452.42                            1,988.66                                     

    (iii) Other financial liabilities 19 156.29                               113.09                                        
Other current liabilities 20 75.32                                 51.19                                          
Provisions 21 8.27                                   5.98                                            

Total current liabilities 6,731.60                            4,135.39                                     

Total liabilites 6,819.72                            4,426.06                                     

Total equity and liabilities 15,253.41                          11,831.08                                   

Corporate information and material accounting policies 1
Other disclosures and additional regulatory information 33

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kritika Wires Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) Naresh Kumar Agarwal Hanuman Prasad Agarwal
Partner (Director) (Managing Director)
Membership No. 066421 (DIN: 01020334) (DIN: 00654218)

Anand Kumar Sharma Mahesh Kumar Sharma
Place of Signature: Kolkata (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
Date: 28th May, 2024

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

    Sd/-     Sd/-

    Sd/-    Sd/-

    Sd/-
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(Rs. in lakh)
 For the year ended  For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
I.Revenue from operations 22 43,173.94                        28,230.38                         
II.Other income 23 669.19                             445.71                              
III.Total Income (I + II) 43,843.13                        28,676.09                         

IV.Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 24 39,242.00                        25,918.65                         

(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-
progress

25 (38.49)                             (342.47)                            

Employee benefits expense 26 532.84                             429.18                              
Finance costs 27 378.84                             295.69                              
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 207.97                             221.07                              
Other expenses 29 2,138.41                          1,373.99                           
Total Expenses 42,461.57                        27,896.11                         

V.Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax 1,381.56                          779.98                              

VI.Exceptional Items -                                  -                                   

VII.Profit Before Tax 1,381.56                          779.98                              

VIII.Tax expense
Current tax 30 350.53                             199.53                              
Deferred tax (9.04)                               (18.13)                              

IX.Profit for the year 1,040.07                          598.58                              

X.Other Comprehensive Income 31
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (15.24)                             (3.57)                                

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss

3.84                                 0.90                                  

Total Other Comprehensive Income (11.40)                             (2.67)                                

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,028.67                          595.91                              
(Comprising of profit and other comprehensive income for the year)

XI. Earnings per equity share  (Refer note no. 32) 32
[Face value Rs. 2/- (previous year Rs.2/-) each]
Basic 0.39                                 0.22                                  
Diluted 0.39                                 0.22                                  

Number of shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic 26,62,80,000                   26,62,80,000                    
Diluted 26,62,80,000                   26,62,80,000                    

Corporate information and material accounting policies 1
Other disclosures and additional regulatory information 33

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kritika Wires Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) Naresh Kumar Agarwal Hanuman Prasad Agarwal
Partner (Director) (Managing Director)
Membership No. 066421 (DIN: 01020334) (DIN: 00654218)

Anand Kumar Sharma Mahesh Kumar Sharma
Place of Signature: Kolkata (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
Date: 28th May, 2024

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars
Note 
No.

    Sd/-     Sd/-     Sd/-

    Sd/-     Sd/-
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(Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

I CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before Tax 1,381.56                  779.98                    

Adjustments for non-cash and non-operating items:
Depreciation 207.97                     221.07                    
Interest income (86.35)                      (180.02)                  
Dividend income on non- current investment -                           (0.24)                      
Net gain on sale of non- current investment (36.18)                      -                         
Fair value loss/(gain) on investments (0.53)                        (4.29)                      
Profit on Sale of Property, plant and equipment (36.18)                      -                         
Sundry balance written off 79.14                       -                         
Allowance for expected credit losses 40.55                       -                         
Finance costs 378.84                     295.69                    

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,928.82                  1,112.19                 
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Inventories (217.44)                    (327.80)                  
Trade receivables (643.00)                    1,503.63                 
Current and non- current financial assets 994.62                     (1,194.95)               
Other current and non current assets (872.20)                    (205.73)                  

Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 494.97                     (984.79)                  
Current and non- current financial liabilities 43.21                       (31.92)                    
Other current and non current liabilities 24.13                       (111.00)                  
Current and non-current provision for employee Benefits 7.94                         18.78                      

Cash generated from operations 1,761.05                  (221.59)                  
Less: Income tax paid (372.41)                    (239.91)                  

Net cash generated from/( used in) operating activities 1,388.64                  (461.50)                  

II CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (972.29)                    (315.26)                  
Sale of property, plant and equipment 97.10                       -                         
Investments in mutual funds 151.73                     -                         
Interest received 86.35                       180.02                    
Investment in fixed deposits (426.24)                    -                         
Maturity of fixed deposits -                           791.03                    
Dividend received -                           0.24                        

Net cash generated from/( used in) investing activities (1,063.35)                 656.03                    

III CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term borrowings -                           221.50                    
Repayment of long term borrowings (399.87)                    (421.38)                  
Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings (net) 2,208.03                  273.85                    
Interest paid (378.84)                    (295.69)                  
Dividend paid -                           (88.76)                    

Net cash generated from/( used in) financing activities 1,429.32                  (310.48)                  

IV Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (I+II+III) 1,754.61                  (115.95)                  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 138.75                     254.70                    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note no. 8(a)] 1,893.36                  138.75                    

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

PARTICULARS
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 (Contd.)

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows :
(a) The above  Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the '' Indirect Method '' as set out in the Indian

Accounting Standard (IND AS)  7 on Statement of Cash Flows.
(b) Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment include movement of Capital work-in-progress during the year.
(c) Proceeds/(repayment) from Short-term borrowings qualify for disclosure on net basis.
(d) Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.
(e) Figure in brackets represent cash outflow from respective activities.
(f) As breakup of Cash and cash equivalents is also available in Note No. 8 (a), reconciliation of items of

Cash and cash equivalants as per Statement of Cash Flow with the respective items reported in the
Balance Sheet is not required and hence not provided.

(g) Change in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Movement in assets and liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 31st March, 2024 are as follows:

(Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2023 March, 2024

Non-current borrowings [Refer Note no. 14]* 401.05                                 (399.87) -                                  1.18                               

Short  term borrowings [Refer Note No. 17]** 1,800.04              2,208.03              -                                  4,008.07                        

Total 2,201.09              1,808.16              -                                  4,009.25

Movement in assets and liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 31st March, 2023 are as follows:

(Rs. in lakh)

As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2023

Non-current borrowings [Refer Note no. 14 ]* 600.93                 (199.88)                -                                  401.05                           

Short  term borrowings [Refer Note No. 17 ]** 1,526.34              273.70                 -                                  1,800.04                        

Total 2,127.27              73.82                   -                                  2,201.09                        

* Includes current maturities of long-term borrowings.
** Excludes current maturities of long-term borrowings.
# Cash flows represents cash flows on net basis.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kritika Wires Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) Naresh Kumar Agarwal Hanuman Prasad Agarwal
Partner (Director) (Managing Director)
Membership No. 066421 (DIN: 01020334) (DIN: 00654218)

Anand Kumar Sharma Mahesh Kumar Sharma
Place of Signature: Kolkata (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
Date: 28th May, 2024

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

Cash flows#

Cash flows#

Other

Other

    Sd/-     Sd/-     Sd/-

    Sd/-    Sd/-
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(a) Equity share capital
(i) For the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Rs. in lakh)
Balance as at 
1st April, 2023

Changes in equity share 
capital during the  year

Balance as at 
31st March, 2024

1,775.20                                                  3,550.40                                      5,325.60                              

(ii) For the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Rs. in lakh)
Balance as at 
1st April, 2022

Changes in equity share 
capital during the  year

Balance as at 
31st March, 2023

1,775.20                                                  -                                               1,775.20                              

(b) Other equity

(i) For the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Rs. in lakh)
Other Comprehensive 

Income

Capital Reserve Securities premium Retained Earnings Re-measurement of 
defined benefit plan

15.00                                   2,447.52                         3,167.30                       -                                 5,629.82                      
-                                       -                                  1,040.07                       -                                 1,040.07                      
-                                       -                                  -                                (11.40)                            (11.40)                         
-                                       -                                  1,040.07                       (11.40)                            1,028.67                      
-                                       -                                  (11.40)                           11.40                             -                              
-                                       -                                  -                                -                                 -                              
-                                       (2,447.52)                        (1,102.88)                      -                                 (3,550.40)                    

15.00                                   -                                  3,093.09                       -                                 3,108.09                      

(i) For the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Rs. in lakh)
Other Comprehensive 

Income

Capital Reserve Securities premium Retained Earnings Re-measurement of 
defined benefit plan

15.00                                   2,447.52                         2,660.15                       -                                 5,122.67                      
-                                       -                                  598.58                          -                                 598.58                         

-                                       -                                  -                                (2.67)                              (2.67)                           

-                                       -                                  598.58                          (2.67)                              595.91                         
-                                       -                                  (2.67)                             2.67                               -                              
-                                       -                                  (88.76)                           -                                 (88.76)                         
-                                       -                                  -                                -                                 -                              

15.00                                   2,447.52                         3,167.30                       -                                 5,629.82                      

Refer note 13 for nature and purpose of reserve.
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G. P. Agrawal & Co. Kritika Wires Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

Naresh Kumar Agarwal Hanuman Prasad Agarwal
 (Director) (Managing Director)
(CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) (DIN: 01020334) (DIN: 00654218)
Partner
Membership No. 066421

Place of Signature: Kolkata Anand Kumar Sharma Mahesh Kumar Sharma
Date: 28th May, 2024 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

Total

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to Retained Earnings
Final dividend paid [Refer Note No. 13]
Utilised for bonus issue of shares
Balance at 31st March, 2023

Balance at 1st April, 2022
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Final dividend paid
Utilised for bonus issue of shares
Balance at 31st March, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to Retained Earnings

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Balance at 1st April, 2023

Total

    Sd/-

    Sd/-     Sd/-

    Sd/-    Sd/-
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Notes forming part of financial statements  
 
Note No. 1:  Corporate information and Material Accounting Policies  
 
1.1 Corporate information 

Kritika Wires Limited (“the Company”) an existing Company, under the Companies Act, 2013 
having Corporate Identity Number (“CIN”) L27102WB2004PLC098699 is a public limited 
company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office situated at 1A, 
Bonfield Lane, Mezanine Floor, Kolkata – 700001, West Bengal, India. 
 

The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, exporting and supplying a wide range 

of Industrial Steel Wire and Galvanized Wire. 

The Company’s shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). 

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024 were approved for issue by the 

Board of Directors of the Company on 28th May, 2024 and are subject to the approval by the 

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

1.2   Material accounting policies 

1.2.1  Statement of Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial 
statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements 
of the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
All the Ind ASs issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements approved 
for issue by the Board of Directors have been considered in preparing these financial 
statements. 
 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Indian 
Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Indian Accounting 
Standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 
 
1.2.1   Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS under the historical 
cost basis except for the following: 
i) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) - measured 
at fair value, and 
ii) Defined benefits plan – plan assets measured at fair value. 
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Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration in exchange for goods 
and services. 
 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use. 
 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The operating cycle 
is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash 
equivalents. Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. 
 
The items included in the financial statements (including notes thereon) are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which Company operates (“the functional 
currency”) and are, therefore, presented in Indian Rupees (“INR” or “Rupees” or “Rs.”). All 
amounts disclosed in the financial statements including notes thereon have been rounded off to 
the nearest Lakh upto two decimals thereof, as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, 
unless stated otherwise. 
 

1.2.2  Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 
 

1.2.3   Revenue recognition 

Contract with a customer is accounted for only when it has commercial substance and all of the 
following criteria are met: 
 
(i) Parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to performing their 
respective obligations; 
 

(ii) Each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred and payment terms 

there against can be identified; 
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(iii) Consideration in exchange for the goods or service to be transferred is collectible and 

determinable. 

Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.) 
Note No. 1:  Corporate information and Significant Accounting Policies (contd.) 
 
 
Revenue From Operations 
 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic benefits would flow to the 

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the revenue proceeds 

is received from customers. 

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received/receivable taking into account 

contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 

Government. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates and 

excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.  

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at point in time when control is transferred to the 

customer and it is probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred 

upon the shipment of the goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the 

customer. 

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice or contract and payment is generally 

due as per agreed credit terms with customer. 

The consideration is generally fixed. Variable consideration, if any is recognised when it is 

highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.   

 

(b) Other income 
(i) Interest income 
For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recognised using the 

Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”). Interest income is included in “Other Income” in the statement 

of profit and loss. 

(ii) Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised when Company’s right to receive the dividend is established i.e. 

in case of interim dividend, on the date of declaration by the Board of Directors; whereas in case 

of final dividend, on the date of approval by the shareholders. 

 

81



 

(iii) Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are accounted for based on claims admitted/expected to be admitted and to 

the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 

All other income are accounted for on accrual basis. 
 

1.2.4  Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Capital work-in-progress 

a) Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment, if any. 

For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost on the date of transition or the purchase cost of 
assets, including non-recoverable duties and taxes, and any directly attributable costs of 
bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intended use. Interest on borrowings used 
to finance the construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as part of the cost of the asset until 
such time that the asset is ready for its intended use. 
 
Costs incurred subsequent to initial capitalization are included in the asset’s carrying amount 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated therewith will flow to the 
Company and it can be measured reliably. 
 
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of regular servicing of 
property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when 
incurred. 
 
The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use, if any, is 

included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for provisions are met. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 

accounted for as separate components; otherwise, these are added to and depreciated over the 

useful life of the main asset. 

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements 

upon sale or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the use of the asset 

and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

b) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Freehold land is not depreciated. 
 

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment commences when the assets are 
available for their intended use. It is provided on a written down value (WDV) basis to allocate 
their cost, net of their residual value over the estimated useful life of the respective asset. 
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The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective 
basis. The Company has adopted the useful life as specified in Schedule II to the Act, except 
where specified. 
 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
Category                                                                          Useful life                                   . 

Buildings                                                                           3 - 60 years  

Plant and equipment*                                                     5 - 25 years 

Furniture and fixtures                                                     10 years 

Vehicles                                                                             5- 10 years 

Computers                                                                        3 - 6 years 

 

*For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation 

carried out by chartered engineers, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above 

best represents the period over which the Company expects to use these assets. Hence the 

useful lives for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The residual value of an item of PPE is not more than 5% of the original cost of the respective 

asset. 

Expenditure during the construction period 

Directly attributable expenditure (including finance costs relating to borrowed funds for 

construction or acquisition of property, plant and equipment) incurred on projects under 

implementation are treated as Pre-operative expenses pending allocation to the assets and are 

shown under Capital work-in-progress. Capital work-in-progress is stated at the amount 

incurred up to the balance sheet date on assets or property, plant and equipment that are not 

yet ready for their intended use. 

1.2.5  Financial instruments, Financial assets, Financial liabilities and Equity Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Balance sheet when the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the 

classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its 

nature and characteristics. 

Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for trade 

receivables. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for 

which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price 
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determined under Ind AS 115. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 

or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial 

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the 

financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

Subsequent Measurement: 

(i)  Financial assets 

 Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost (AC): 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model   

whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): 

           A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose  

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 

and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

          Investment in equity instruments that are not held for trading are measured at FVTOCI, 

where an irrevocable election has been made by management on an instrument-by-

instrument basis. These investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction 

costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from 

changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 

reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss 

on disposal of the investments. Dividends on such investments are recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of 

the cost of the investment.   

                  Debt investments measured at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest 

income under effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 

impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses 

are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On de-recognition, gains and 

losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. 

          Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): 

                  A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at 

FVTPL. A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that 

meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such 
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designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 

inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the 

gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt 

instrument as at FVTPL. 

          Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, 

with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss. 

           Impairment of Financial Assets: 

                  Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at 

amortised cost and FVTOCI at each reporting date based on evidence or information 

that is available without undue cost or effort. 

                 The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the 

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased 

significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not 

increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss 

allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.  

                  In case of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance shall be recognised 

in other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the profit or loss and not 

reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet. In case of 

such instrument, amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss are the same as 

the amount would have been recognized in case the debt instrument is measured at 

amortised cost. 

                  No Expected credit losses is recognised on equity investments. 

                 For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset 

that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company 

measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses taking 

into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking 

information. 

                 Derecognition of Financial Assets: 

                 The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the 

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

                  On derecognition of a financial asset accounted under Ind AS 109 in its entirety: 

85



a) for financial assets measured at amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

b) for financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the 

cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves are reclassified to the 

Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents an equity investment in which 

case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves is reclassified 

within equity. 

 

(ii) Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments: 
Classification as debt or equity: 
 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument. 

           

             Equity Instruments 

             An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of  

the  Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Repurchase of the Company's own 

equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation 

of the Company's own equity instruments. 

            Financial Liabilities 

            Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are   

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

            For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the 

carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

           Derecognition of financial liabilities 

            A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged  

or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the 

carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and 

payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
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          Off-setting of financial instruments 

          Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance 

Sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there 

is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously backed by past practice. 

         Fair value measurement 

          Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 

transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 

for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 

to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the 

fair value measurement in its entirety, which are as follows: 

 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date; 

 

Level 2 - Other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
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Expected Credit Loss 

 

Expected credit loss (ECL) is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e., the 

present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial instrument. A 

cash shortfall is the difference between scheduled or contractual cash flows and actual 

expected cash flows. Consequently, ECL subsumes both the amount and timing of 

payments – a credit loss would arise even when a receivable was realised in full but later 

than when contractually due. 

 

1.2.6. Inventories 

 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Inventory of scrap 

is valued at estimated realizable value. The cost of inventories is determined using the 

weighted average cost method. Cost includes direct materials, labour, other direct cost 

and manufacturing overheads. Inventories of finished goods also includes applicable 

taxes. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the 

sale. 

 

1.2.7  Borrowing costs 

 

            Borrowing costs, general or specific, that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 

construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset till such 

time that is required to complete and prepare the asset to get ready for its intended use. 

A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready 

for its intended use. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the 

Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also 

include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing 

costs. 

            All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in 

which they are incurred. 

 

1.2.8   Expenses 

 

            All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis. 

            Expenses under primary heads such as salary, wages, consumption of stores etc., are 

being shown under respective heads and have not been functionally reclassified. 
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1.2.9   Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

 

(a) A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, Company has a present legal or 

constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow 

of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are not 

recognised for future operating losses. 

 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 

to settle the present obligation as at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks 

and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to 

be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset. The expense 

relating to the provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any 

reimbursement. 

 

(b) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past 

events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 

or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Company or where 

any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or 

where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. 

 

(c) A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, it is disclosed, 

where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

 

(d) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance 

sheet date. 

 

1.2.10 Foreign currency transactions and translations 

 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing 

on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

 

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining 

outstanding on the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on 

the balance sheet date. Any income or expense arising on account of foreign exchange 

difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss. 

 

Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. 
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1.2.11 Employee benefits 

             (a) Short-term employee benefits 

 

 Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non- monetary 

benefits, are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of 

profit and loss in the year in which the related service is rendered. 

 

(b) Defined contribution plans 

 

The Company pays provident and other fund contributions to publicly administered 

fund as per related Government regulations. The Company has no further obligation, 

other than the contributions payable to the respective funds. The Company recognizes 

contribution payable to such funds as an expense when an employee renders the related 

service. 

 

(c) Defined benefit plans 

 

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. 

 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present 

value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of 

plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by external actuaries using the 

projected unit credit method. 

 

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in 

actuarial assumptions are recognised directly in other comprehensive income in the 

period in which they occur and are included in retained earnings in the statement of 

changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

 

1.2.12  Government Grants 

 

            Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant 

would be received and the Company would comply with all the conditions attached to 

them. 

             Government grants related to property, plant and equipment, including non-monetary 

grants, are presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant in arriving at the 

carrying amount of the asset. 

            Government grants of revenue in nature are recognised on a systematic basis in the 

statement of profit and loss over the period necessary to match them with the related 

costs and are adjusted with the related expenditure. If not related to a specific 
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expenditure, it is considered as income and included under “Other Operating Revenue” 

or “Other Income”.   

            The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest or loan with interest 

subvention and effect of this favourable interest is treated as a government grant. The 

loan or assistance is initially recognised at fair value and the government grant is 

measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan 

based on prevailing market interest rates and recognised on a systematic basis in the 

statement of profit and loss. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting 

policy applicable to financial liabilities. 

 

1.2.13.   Impairment of Non financial Assets 

 

             An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the 

asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 

fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

 

            To assess impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 

separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). 

 

            In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 

value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

 

            If at the balance sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment 

loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment loss 

previously recognised is reversed so that the asset is recognised at its recoverable 

amount but not exceeding the value which would have been reported in this respect if 

the impairment loss had not been recognised. 

 

1.2.14  Taxes 

 

            Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in 

Equity or other comprehensive income (OCI). 

 

a) Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured 

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities using the 

tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date 

and applicable for the period. 
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Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCI and Equity 

are recognised in OCI and Equity respectively. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns to situations in 

which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and full provisions are 

made where appropriate based on the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle 

on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

b) Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the deductible and taxable 

temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amount in the standalone financial statements. 

 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, the carry 

forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the same will be reversed or 

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to 

be utilised. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates (and tax laws) that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right 

exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 

relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

 

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with 

the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of 

availability of set off against future income tax liability. 

 

Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset 

can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated 

with asset will be realised. 
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1.2.15  Earnings per Share 

 

a) Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

b) Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by 

the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings 

per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could be issued 

on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares 

are determined at the end of each period presented. 

 

The number of equity shares and potential dilutive equity shares are adjusted 

retrospectively for all periods presented for any share split and bonus shares issues 

including for changes effected before the approval of the standalone financial statements 

by the Board of Directors. 

 

1.2.16  Cash and cash equivalents 

 

            Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques on hand, 

balance with banks, and short term liquid investments with an original maturity of three 

months or less and which carry an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

            For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash 

and cash equivalents, as defined above and net of outstanding book overdrafts as they 

are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. 

 

1.2.17  Cash Flow Statement 

 

            Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is 

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a noncash nature, any deferrals or accruals of 

past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 

associated with investing or financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 

and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

 

1.2.18  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 

            The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management 

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the 

accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 

amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from 
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those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going 

basis. 

             Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 

revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the 

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 

(a) Judgements in applying accounting policies 

The judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below), that the 

Company has made in the process of applying its accounting policies and that have a 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial statements pertain to 

useful life of intangible assets. 

 

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of 

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk 

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year. 

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the 

estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 

the end of each reporting period. 

(ii) Fair value measurements and valuation processes 

Some of the Company’s assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting 

purposes. Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on 

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and 

the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety. 

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the 

fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the 

financial statements. 

(iii) Actuarial Valuation 

The determination of Company’s liability towards defined benefit obligation to 

employees is made through independent actuarial valuation including 

determination of amounts to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation depends upon assumptions 

determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other 

relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. 

Information about such valuation is provided in notes to the financial statements. 

(iv) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Any litigation where amount of flow of funds is believed to be probable and are 

liable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on 

94



management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant 

external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such 

accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can 

involve estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in 

notes to the financial statements. 

(v) Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model 

on trade receivables. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine 

impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision 

matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of 

the trade receivable. At every reporting date, the historically observed default 

rates are updated. 

1.2.19  Recent accounting pronouncements 

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the 

existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued 

from time to time. For the year ended 31st March, 2024, MCA has not notified any new 

standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company. 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)

Note No. : 2(a)  Property, plant and equipment (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars  Land

(Free hold) 
 Buildings  Plant and 

Machinery 
 Furniture and 

fittings 
 Motor 

Vehicles 
 Computer  Total 

Gross block
Gross carrying amount as at 1st April, 2023 249.18              658.42              1,121.16               55.95                   55.84                    4.28                2,144.83             
Additions during the year -                    162.27              1,050.33               0.32                     17.91                    3.37                1,234.20             
Disposals/deductions during the year -                    -                    82.37                    9.03                     -                       -                 91.40                  
Gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2024 249.18              820.69              2,089.12               47.24                   73.75                    7.65                3,287.63             

Depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April, 2023 -                    135.86              518.88                  16.84                   27.49                    2.45                701.52                
Depreciation for the year -                    45.54                139.65                  9.95                     11.06                    1.77                207.97                
Disposals/deductions during the year -                    -                    23.28                    7.22                     -                       -                 30.50                  

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March, 2024 -                    181.40              635.25                  19.57                   38.55                    4.22                878.99                
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2024 249.18              639.29              1,453.87               27.67                   35.20                    3.43                2,408.64             

Gross block
Gross carrying amount as at 1st April, 2022 249.18              647.98              1,115.52               55.95                   55.84                    3.36                2,127.83             
Additions during the year -                    10.44                5.64                      -                      -                       0.92                17.00                  
Disposals/deductions during the year -                    -                    -                       -                      -                       -                 -                      
Gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2023 249.18              658.42              1,121.16               55.95                   55.84                    4.28                2,144.83             

Depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April, 2022 -                    90.50                370.76                  3.33                     14.98                    0.88                480.45                
Depreciation for the year -                    45.36                148.12                  13.51                   12.51                    1.57                221.07                
Disposals/deductions during the year -                    -                    -                       -                      -                       -                 -                      

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March, 2023 -                    135.86              518.88                  16.84                   27.49                    2.45                701.52                
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2023 249.18              522.56              602.28                  39.11                   28.35                    1.82                1,443.31             

Notes :
(a) The finance costs capitalised during the year - Nil (previous year Nil).
(b) The Company has availed loans from banks against security of the aforesaid assets (Refer Note No. 14 and 17 for detailed security terms).
(c) Title deed of immovable property is held in the name of the Company.

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)

Note No. : 2(b)  Capital work-in-progress (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

Plant and equipments / Civil work-in-progress

Balance brought forward 339.12                    40.86                     

Additions during the year 58.41                      298.26                   

Gross amount before capitalisation (A) 397.53                    339.12                   

Capitalised during the year                                                           (B) 320.32                    -                         

Capital work-in-progress at the end of the year    (A-B) (C) 77.21                      339.12                   

Refer Note No. - 33.15 (a) for Ageing Schedule.

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED
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Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)

Note No. : 3 Investment Property (Rs. in lakh)

Particulars
 As at 31st 

March, 2024 
 As at 31st 

March, 2023 

Carried at cost:
     Art & Painting 1.70                 1.70                  
     Flat 70.47               70.47                
     Office Premises 60.83               60.83                

133.00             133.00              
Fair value (see note 1 below)
     Flat 123.44             123.44              
     Office Premises 71.88               71.88                

195.32             195.32              

Note:

(2) Flat is mortgaged against Working Capital loan from State Bank of India (Refer note no.17).
(3) Office Premises is mortgaged against Working Capital loan from Karnataka Bank (Refer note no.17).

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

(1)  The fair value of immovable investment property is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies 
(Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.
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Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)

Note No. : 4  Other non-current Financial assets (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Carried at amortized cost
  Others
    Fixed deposits with banks * 120.21                         1,252.99                   
     (Non current portion with original maturity period of more than 12 months)

120.21                         1,252.99                   
* Margin deposits against Letters of Credit and Bank Guarantees.

Note No. : 5  Inventories (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 2,946.21                      2,766.31                   
Work in progress 756.16                         848.17                      
Finished goods 598.94                         468.44                      

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

Stores & spares 78.69                           79.64                        

4,380.00                      4,162.56                   
Refer note no.17 for inventories charged as security.

Note No. : 6  Non-current investments
 As at 
March 31, 2021 

No. of Units  Amount 
(Rs. in lakh) 

No. of Units  Amount 
(Rs. in lakh) No. of Units

Quoted, Fully paid
  Carried at fair value through profit or loss
   Investments in mutual funds*
     Baroda Pioneer ELSS' 96 -                         -                             17,187.65                             2.80                             8,254.23                   
     SBI Mutual Fund -                         -                             2,61,112.18                          112.20                         2,61,112.18              

Aggregate book value of Quoted Investments -                             115.00                         

Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments -                             115.00                         
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments -                             -                               

*  Pledged with banks against Letters of Credit and Bank Guarantees.

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2023 
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Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

Note No. : 7  Trade Receivables - Current  (carried at amortised cost) (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured* 4,238.11                      3,607.88                   
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -Unsecured -                               -                            
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 40.55                           12.77                        

4,197.56                      3,595.11                   
*Includes dues from company where directors are director/member 4.11                             6.81                          

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024: (Rs. in lakh)

 Less than 6 
months 

 6 months- 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than-3 Years  Total 

                 2,050.86                  1,714.47                         400.70                                      32.47                               5.02                          34.59                  4,238.11 

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

Particulars
Not Due

(ii)  Undisputed Trade receivables- which have 
significant increase in credit risk
(iii)  Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit Impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good

Outstanding for following periods from due date

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   
                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   
                 2,050.86                  1,714.47                         400.70                                      32.47                               5.02                          34.59                  4,238.11 

  
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2023: (Rs. in lakh)

Less than 6 
months

 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than-3 Years Total

                           -                    2,986.51                         112.11                                        8.42                           485.68                          15.16                  3,607.88 

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                               -                                  -                                             -                                     -                                 -                               -   

                           -                    2,986.51                         112.11                                        8.42                           485.68                          15.16                  3,607.88 

Particulars
Not Due

(iii)  Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit Impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-   which have significant 
increase in credit risk
(vi)  Disputed Trade receivables-  Credit Impaired

TOTAL

TOTAL

Outstanding for following periods from due date

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good

(ii)  Undisputed Trade receivables- which have 
significant increase in credit risk

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-   which have significant 
increase in credit risk
(vi)  Disputed Trade receivables-  Credit Impaired
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Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

Note No. : 8  Cash and bank balances (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st 

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

(a) Cash and cash equivalents:
       Balance with schedule bank in Cash Credit acount 1,872.47                       124.33                      
       Cash on hand (as certified by the management) 20.89                            14.42                        

1,893.36                       138.75                      
(b) Other bank balances:

       Fixed deposits with banks*
                -Current portion of original maturity more than 12 months 455.56                          29.32                        

455.56                          29.32                        

2,348.92                       168.07                      
* Margin  money deposits against Letters of Credit and Bank Guarantees.

Note No. : 9  Other Current Financial Assets (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Carried at amortized cost
(Unsecured, considered good)
     Security deposits 180.07                          41.93                        
     Other receivables 2.35                              2.35                          

182.42                          44.28                        

Note No. : 10 Current Tax (Net) (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

Advance income tax 939.51                          563.26                      
Less: Provision for income tax 876.73                          522.37                      

62.78                            40.89                        

Note No. : 11 Other Current Assets (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

Advances other than capital advances
    Advances to suppliers 791.33                          86.45                        
    Other Advances 322.63                          302.61                      
Others
    GST and other taxes/duties 178.49                          111.65                      
    Prepaid expenses 25.68                            24.36                        

1,318.13                       525.07                      
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)

Note No. : 12  Equity Share capital  

No. of shares Amount
(Rs. in lakh)

No. of shares Amount
(Rs. in lakh)

(a) Authorised

27,00,00,000   5,400.00               9,25,00,000       1,850.00                          

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

26,62,80,000   5,325.60               8,87,60,000       1,775.20                          

5,325.60               1,775.20                          

(c) Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period :

No. of shares Amount
 (Rs. in lakh)

No. of shares Amount
 (Rs. in lakh)

At the beginning of the year 8,87,60,000     1,775.20               1,77,52,000       1,775.20                          
Add: Sub-division during the year* -                   -                        7,10,08,000       -                                   
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year (Refer note no. 33.10) 17,75,20,000   3,550.40               -                     -                                   

At the end of the year 26,62,80,000   5,325.60               8,87,60,000       1,775.20                          

(d) Terms / Rights attached to Equity shares :
The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2/- (previous year Rs.2/-) each.  The holders of
these shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and entitled to one vote per share.

(e) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential dues. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

(f) Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company :

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
1 Gunnayak Commercial Pvt. Ltd. 5,17,50,000     19.43% 1,72,50,000       19.43%
2 Panchshul Merchants Pvt. Ltd. 3,00,00,000     11.27% 1,00,00,000       11.27%
3 Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 1,83,00,000     6.87% 61,00,000          6.87%
4 Sushil Agarwal 1,83,00,000     6.87% 61,00,000          6.87%
5 R. A. Computech Investment & Consultants (P) Ltd. 1,45,50,000     5.46% 48,50,000          5.46%
6 Alltime Suppliers Pvt. Ltd. 1,47,00,000     5.52% 49,00,000          5.52%

14,76,00,000   55.43% 4,92,00,000       55.43%

(g) The aggregate number of equity shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash in immediately

(h)

Promoter name
No. of shares at 

the end of 
the year

% of total shares
No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

the year
% of total shares % Change during the year

Hanuman Prasad Agarwal                                                1,83,00,000 6.87%              61,00,000 6.87% 0.00%
Sushil Kumar Agarwal                                                1,83,00,000 6.87%              61,00,000 6.87% 0.00%
Naresh Kumar Agarwal                                                1,26,00,000 4.73%              42,00,000 4.73% 0.00%
Santosh Agarwal                                                   48,00,000 1.80%              16,00,000 1.80% 0.00%
Naresh Kumar Agarwal                                                   12,00,000 0.45%                4,00,000 0.45% 0.00%
Sanjeev Binani                                                     1,50,000 0.06%                    50,000 0.06% 0.00%
Anil Kumar Mittal                                                     1,50,000 0.06%                    50,000 0.06% 0.00%

5,55,00,000                                              20.84% 1,85,00,000          20.84% 0.00%

Promoter name
No. of shares at 

the end of 
the year

% of total shares
No. of shares at 
the beginning of 

the year
% of total shares % Change during the year

Hanuman Prasad Agarwal                                                   61,00,000 6.87%              12,20,000 6.87% 0.00%
Sushil Kumar Agarwal                                                   61,00,000 6.87%              12,20,000 6.87% 0.00%
Naresh Kumar Agarwal                                                   42,00,000 4.73%                8,40,000 4.73% 0.00%
Santosh Agarwal                                                   16,00,000 1.80%                3,20,000 1.80% 0.00%
Naresh Kumar Agarwal                                                     4,00,000 0.45%                    80,000 0.45% 0.00%
Sanjeev Binani                                                        50,000 0.06%                    10,000 0.06% 0.00%
Anil Kumar Mittal                                                        50,000 0.06%                    10,000 0.06% 0.00%

1,85,00,000                                              20.84% 37,00,000             20.84% 0.00%

preceding  last five years was  18,39,90,000 Equity Shares (previous year 64,70,000 Equity Shares).

Disclosure of Shareholding of promoters:
As at 31st March, 2024:

As at 31st March, 2023:

Sl. 
No.

Name of shareholders
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

* The sub-division of 1 equity share of the Company having face value of Rs. 10/- each into 5 (Five) equity shares having face value of Rs. 2/- 
each, is effective from 30th August, 2022. 

Particulars

Equity shares of par value Rs. 2/- (previous year Rs. 2/-) each 

Equity shares of par value Rs. 2/- (previous year Rs. 2/-) each 

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars
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Note No. : 13 Other equity (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

a) Capital reserves
Balance as per last account 15.00                            15.00                         

15.00                            15.00                         
b) Securities premium 

Balance as per last account 2,447.52                       2,447.52                    
Less: Utilised for bonus issue of shares (Refer note no. 33.10) 2,447.52                       -                             

-                                2,447.52                    
c) Retained earnings

Balance as per last account 3,167.30                       2,660.15                    
Add: Profit for the year 1,040.07                       598.58                       
Add: Transferred from OCI - Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (11.40)                           (2.67)                         
Less: Final Dividend Paid* -                                88.76                         
Less: Utilised for bonus issue of shares (Refer note no. 33.10) 1,102.88                       -                             

3,093.09                       3,167.30                    
d) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 
Balance as per last account -                                -                             
Add: Addition during the year (11.40)                           (2.67)                         
Less: Transferred to retained earnings 11.40                            2.67                           

-                                -                             

TOTAL (a+b+c+d) 3,108.09                       5,629.82                    

e) Nature and purpose of Reserves:
(i)

(ii)

(iii) Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.
(iv)

Note No. : 14  Non-current borrowings (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

a) Secured Loans
Term loans from bank
    Axis Bank Ltd.- Gauranteed Emergency Credit Line -                                223.53                       

b) Unsecured Loans
   From others -bodies corporate 1.18                              1.09                           

1.18                              224.62                       

c) Nature of Security:
(ii) Term loan from Axis Bank Ltd. as Gauranteed Emergency Credit Line is secured by  Primary security/ Collateral security

of Land and Building and  Personal Guarantee of directors and Corporate Guarantee of R A Comptech  Investment & Consultant Pvt. Ltd.

d) Rate of interest and Terms of repayment:

Current*  Non current  installment 

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
 Axis Bank Ltd. - GECL - -                          -                              -                                         -                                -                             

(8.65% p.a.) (159.76)                   (40.41)                        (1 year and 4 months) (15)                                (13.31)                       

 Axis Bank Ltd.- GECL - -                          -                              -                                         -                                -                             
(8.65% p.a.) (16.67)                     (183.12)                      (3 years and 9 months) (36)                                (5.56)                         

Shreyash Aluminium & Alloy Pvt. Ltd. 12% p.a. -                          1.18                            (1 year)  1 (Bullet Payment) 1.18                           
(12% p.a.) (-) (1.09)                           (2 years)  1 (Bullet Payment) (1.09)                         

-                          1.18                            
(176.43)                   (224.62)                      

Note: Figure in brackets pertain to previous year.
*Represents Current maturities of long term debts shown under 'Current borrowings' (Note no.17).
$ Instalmemt inclusive of interest.

e) There is no default in repayments of the principal amount of loans and interest thereon.

 The amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified as securities premium. The reserve may be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act,2013. 

 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan through OCI represents the acturial gain on employees' benefit which has been, transferred to retained earnings. 

 *During the previous year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company paid the final dividend of  Re. 0.50 (Fifty Paise Only) per equity share for the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 Capital Reserve comprise of reserve arising on Capital Gains and profit on revaluation of capital assets in earlier years, in accordance with applicable accounting standard. 

Rate of interest
 Period of maturity w.r.t. 
the Balance Sheet date 

 Number of 
installments 

outstanding as on 
31/03/2024 

 Amount of each 
Name of the banks / entities Amount outstanding as on 31/03/2024
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Note No. : 15  Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets)(Net)
As at 31st March, 2024 (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing

Balance profit or loss other Balance
comprehensive

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 5.37                             (6.08)                                         -                                 (0.71)                         
Fair value of investments 1.08                             (0.95)                                         -                                 0.13                           

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis 18.13                           2.01                                          3.84                                23.97                         

Net deferred tax liabilities /(assets) (11.68)                          (9.04)                                         (3.84)                              (24.55)                       

As at 31st March, 2023 (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing

Balance profit or loss other Balance
comprehensive

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 16.15                           (10.78)                                       -                                 5.37                           
 Fair value of investments 2.34                             (1.26)                                         -                                 1.08                           

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis 11.14                           6.09                                          0.90                                18.13                         

Net deferred tax liabilities /(assets) 7.35                             (18.13)                                       (0.90)                              (11.68)                       

Note No. : 16  Non- current provisions (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

Provision for employee benefits - Gratuity 86.94                              66.05                         
(Refer note no. 33.7)

86.94                              66.05                         

Note No. : 17 Current borrowings (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

a)  Loans repayable on demand- Secured Loan
From Banks
   State Bank of India - Working Capital Loan -                                 0.04                           
   Karnataka Bank Ltd. - Working Capital Loan 0.35                                -                             
   Yes Bank Ltd. - Channel Financing Account 115.95                           -                             
   Yes Bank Ltd. - Working Capital Loan 436.32                           -                             
   Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. - Working Capital Loan 1,055.45                        -                             
   Axis Bank - Demand Loan 2,400.00                        1,800.00                    

4,008.07                        1,800.04                    

b) Current maturities of long - term borrowings * -                                 176.43                       

4,008.07                        1,976.47                    

*Refer note no. 14 (c) & (d) for  nature of securities and terms of repayment respectively.

Nature of security
 i) 

 ii) 

 iii) 

 iv) 

 v) 

 Working Capital loan from Karnataka Bank Ltd. is secured by hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, spares and  book debts  of the Company and 
personal guarantee of directors. 
 Working Capital loan from State Bank of India was secured by hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, spares and  book debts  of the Company and 
personal guarantee of directors. 

 Working Capital loan and Channel Financing Account from Yes Bank Ltd. is secured by hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods,spares, book debts  and 
current assets of the Company and personal guarantee of directors. 

 Working Capital loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. is secured by hypothecation of First Pari Passu basis on all existing and future receivables, current assets, moveable assets and 
moveable fixed assets. 
Working Capital loan and Demand loan from Axis Bank is secured by way of hypothecation of Stocks & Receivables and all other current assets both present and future of the company 
including raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods in the name of the company. Raw Material Includes wires, Zinc and other related products at factory premises/godown elsewhere 
and receivables (book debts) and all other current assets along with Karnataka Bank. Also, hypothecation of entire Plant and Machinery of the borrower, both present and future on first pari 
passu basis.
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Note No. : 18  Trade payables (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 31.23                            -                           
(Refer note no. 33.2)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 2,452.42                       1,988.66                   

2,483.65                       1,988.66                   

As at 31st March, 2024 (Rs. in lakh)

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

(i) MSME -                        -                     31.23                                                                      -                                     -                                -   31.23                     
(ii) Others -                        -                     2,447.87                     1.91                                        2.44                              0.20                         2,452.42                 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME -                        -                     -                                                                          -                                     -                                -   -                         

(iv) Disputed dues- Others -                        -                     -                                                                          -                                     -                                -   -                         

As at 31st March, 2023 (Rs. in lakh)

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

(i) MSME -                        -                     -                                                                         -                                     -                                -   -                         
(ii) Others -                        -                     1,973.30                                                              2.92                              12.24                           0.20 1,988.66                
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME -                        -                     -                                                                          -                                     -                                -   -                         

(iv) Disputed dues- Others -                        -                     -                                                                          -                                     -                                -   -                         

Note No. : 19 Other current financial liabilities (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Other payables

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transactions

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transactions

Unbilled

Unbilled

Not Due

Not Due

Total

Total

Particulars

Other payables

  Accrued expenses                              99.96                         82.57 
  Unpaid salaries and other payroll dues                              56.33                         30.52 

                           156.29                       113.09 

Note No. : 20   Other current liabilities (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

   Advance from customers and others 60.02                            34.96                       
   Statutory liabilities 15.30                            16.23                       

75.32                            51.19                       

Note No. : 21  Current provisions (Rs. in lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

Provision for employee benefits - Gratuity (Refer note no. 33.7) 8.27                              5.98                         

8.27                              5.98                         

Note No. 22 :  Revenue from operations (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Sale of products
    Manufactured goods
       Industrial steel wires and galvanized wires 42,301.69                     27,569.70                 

Other operating revenue
     Brokerage and Commission 872.25                          660.68                     

Total 43,173.94                     28,230.38                 
Note: Disclosure as required under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers has been given in Note no. 33.14.

Particulars
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Note No. 23 :  Other Income (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
     -Fixed deposits 27.00                            21.11                       
     -Others 59.35                            158.91                     
Rent received 18.00                            -                           
Dividend income on non- current investment classified as FVTPL -                               0.24                         
Net gain on sale of non- current investment classified as FVTPL 4.68                              -                           
Profit on Sale of Property, plant and equipment 36.18                            -                           
Fair value gain on non current investments classified as FVTPL 0.53                              4.29                         
Other non-operating income
   Export incentive (Refer note no. 33.13) 0.85                              3.86                         
   Exchange fluctuation gain 12.33                            -                           
   Freight charges received 123.74                          40.85                       
   Labour charges -                               15.33                       
   Rebates 385.54                          199.88                     
   Miscellaneous income 0.99                              1.24                         

669.19                          445.71                     

Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)

Note No. 24 :  Cost of materials consumed (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Raw material consumed
Opening stock 2,766.31                       2,823.95                   
Add: Purchases 39,421.90                     25,861.02                 

42,188.21                     28,684.97                 
Less : Closing stock 2,946.21                       2,766.31                   

39,242.00                     25,918.65                 

Particulars

Particulars

Note No. 25:  Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Opening stock
     - Finished goods 468.44                          275.10                     
     - Work in progress 848.17                          699.04                     

1,316.61                       974.14                     
Less: Closing stock
     - Finished goods 598.94                          468.44                     
     - Work in progress 756.16                          848.17                     

1,355.10                       1,316.61                   

(38.49)                           (342.47)                    

Note No. 26 :  Employee benefits expense (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Salary and wages* 499.87                          386.87                     
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 29.51                            40.89                       
Staff welfare expense 3.46                              1.42                         

532.84                          429.18                     
*Includes Director's Remuneration Rs. 62.40 lakh (Previous year Rs. 62.40 lakh).

Note No. 27 :  Finance costs (Rs. in lakh)
For the year For the

ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest expense
      on long - term borrowings 10.40                            42.82                       
      on Working capital loans 266.88                          119.31                     
      on Packing credits -                               2.01                         
      on Others* 1.14                              69.24                       
Other borrowing cost 100.42                          62.31                       

378.84                          295.69                     

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

378.84                          295.69                     

* Includes Interest on statutory dues 1.12                              0.15                         
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Note No. 28 :  Depreciation expense (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 207.97                           221.07                       
      [ Refer Note no. 2(a) ]

207.97                           221.07                       

Note No. 29 :  Other expense (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Consumption of stores 459.30                           211.37                       
Power and fuel 467.97                           331.54                       
Rent* 23.48                              10.37                         
Repairs & maintenance
        - Plant and machinery 126.39                           -                             
        - Building 2.86                                0.65                           
        - Others 4.88                                73.71                         
Insurance charges 69.88                              70.76                         
Rates and taxes 41.79                              19.56                         
Clearing and forwarding charges 14.85                              21.67                         
Carriage inward 215.82                           131.05                       
Bank charges and commission 8.83                                20.97                         
Legal and professional expenses 32.25                              43.16                         
Payments to the auditor
        - Statutory audit 1.30                                1.30                           
        - Tax audit 0.50                                0.50                           
        - Certification 0.59                                -                             
Membership and subscription 2.95                                2.30                           
Carriage outward 288.06                           179.80                       
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss -                                 107.14                       
Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note no. 33.8) 9.50                                5.50                           
Loss on Commodity MCX Zinc 4.10                                9.77                           

Particulars

Particulars

Loss on Commodity MCX Zinc 4.10                                9.77                           
Sundry balance written off 79.14                              -                             
Allowance for expected credit losses 40.55                              -                             
Miscellaneous expenses 243.42                           132.87                       

2,138.41                        1,373.99                    

Note No. 30 :  Tax expense (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

  Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss
Current tax 350.53                           199.53                       
Deferred tax (9.04)                              (18.13)                       

341.49                           181.40                       

  Reconciliation of tax expenses
Profit before tax 1,381.56                        779.98                       
Applicable tax rate (%) 25.17                              25.17                         
Computed tax expense 347.71                           196.31                       

  Adjustments for:
Expenses not allowed for tax purpose 57.88                              14.19                         
Changes in recognized deductible temporary differences (9.04)                              (18.13)                       
Other effects (55.06)                            (10.96)                       

341.49                           181.40                       

Note No. : 31  Other comprehensive income (Rs. in lakh)
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans (15.24)                            (3.57)                         
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 3.84                                0.90                           

(11.40)                            (2.67)                         

Particulars

Particulars

 * Includes, short term lease rental of Rs.10.00 lakh (31st March 2023: Nil)  charged to Statement of Profit and Loss pertaining to factory premise at Bhubaneshwar, Odisha taken on lease. 
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Note No. 32 :  Earnings per share
For the For the

year ended year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

(a) Amount used as the numerator:
   Profit for the year (A) (Rs. in lakh) 1,040.07                        598.58                       

(b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding used as 
denominator for computing basic earnings per share - (B) 26,62,80,000                 26,62,80,000             

(c) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding used as 
denominator for computing diluted earnings per share - (C) 26,62,80,000                 26,62,80,000             

(d) Nominal value of equity shares  (Rs.) 2.00                               2.00                           

(e) Basic earnings per share  (Rs.)  (A/B) 0.39                               0.22                           

(f) Diluted earnings per share  (Rs.)  (A/C) 0.39                               0.22                           

Particulars

(f) Diluted earnings per share  (Rs.)  (A/C) 0.39                               0.22                           

Note: During the year ended 31st March, 2024, Bonus equity shares were allotted in proportion of 2 (two) equity shares of Rs.2/- each for every 1 (one) equity share of Rs.2/- each to the 
existing shareholders of the Company as on record date i.e. 19th December, 2023 as approved by the Board of Director on 20th December, 2023. The basic and diluted earnings per share 
(EPS) for the previous year have been restated to give effect of the bonus share as per IND AS 33.
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Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)

33 Other disclosures and additional regulatory informations:
33.1 Contingent liabilites and commitments (to the extent not provided for) (Rs. in lakh)

As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

(a)  Contingent liabilities :
     Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts :

Guarantee given by bank on behalf of company 1,187.62                        1,940.97                         

The amounts shown in (a) above represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information.
The uncertainties and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of different legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants as the
case may be and therefore cannot be estimated accurately. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above contingent liabilities.

33.2 Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006:
Based on the information/documents available with the Company,  information as per the requirement of section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 with respect to trade payables, suppliers of capital goods and creditors for expenses are as follows:

As at 31st March, 2024 : (Rs. in lakh)
Payable to suppliers Payable to creditors Total

of capital goods For Expense
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of accounting year* 31.21                               -                                -                                  31.21                                
(b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of accounting year* 0.02                                 -                                -                                  0.02                                  
(c) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16, of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment
made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   

(e) The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   

(f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   
* Included in the line item "Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises" under note no.18.

As at 31st March, 2023 : (Rs. in lakh)
Payable to suppliers Payable to creditors Total

of capital goods For Expense
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of accounting year -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   
(b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of accounting year -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   
(c) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16, of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment
made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   

(e) The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   

(f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 -                                  -                                -                                  -                                   

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

Sl. 
No.

Sl. 
No.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables

Particulars

Description

Description



Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)
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33.3 Related party disclosures  in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 19  are given below :

I.

(a) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
1) Sri Naresh Kumar Agarwal - Chairman cum Director
2) Sri Hanuman Prasad Agarwal -Managing Director
3) Sri Sanjeev Kumar Binani -  Director
4) Sri Ankush Agarwal - Director
5) Sri Rajiv Adukia - Non Executive Director
6) Mrs. Puja Bachhawat -  Non Executive Director
7) Sri Mahesh Kumar Sharma - Company Secretary
8) Sri Anand Kumar Sharma - Chief Financial Officer

(b) Enterprises owned or significantlty influenced by KMP and their Relatives
Gunnayak Commercial Pvt. Ltd.
Alltime Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd.
Jai Hanuman Industrial Corporation
Mohta Agencies Pvt. Ltd.
Panchshul Merchants Pvt. Ltd.
R A Computech Investment & Consultant Pvt. Ltd.
Balaji Electrodes Pvt. Ltd.
Blue Bird Dealers Private Limited

Note: Related party transaction is as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditor.

II. Transaction with related parties during the year: (Rs. in lakh)

Sales
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                           0.41                                 

(-) (450.18)                           

Purchases
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                           -                                  

(-) (14.79)                             

Jai Hanuman Industrial Corporation -                                           759.03                             
(-) (851.12)                           

Rent Received
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                           18.00                               

(-) (-)
Electricity charges received
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                           50.90                               

(-) (31.74)                             
Electricity charges paid (Factory)
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                           5.30

(-) (5.95)                               
Interest paid
Panchshul Merchants Pvt. Ltd. -                                           (-)

(-) (0.08)                               
Repairs and mantainance expenses 
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                           1.19                                

(-) (0.12)                               

Jai Hanuman Industrial Corporation -                                           0.11                                
(-) (-)

Reimbursement of Expenses
Sri Ankush Agarwal 0.38                                         -                                  

(-) (-)
Rent paid
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                           10.20                               

(-) (10.20)                             
Remuneration to KMP (Short term employee benefits)*
Sri Ankush Agarwal 20.40                                        -                                  

(20.40)                                      (-)

Sri Hanuman Prasad Agarwal 30.00                                        -                                  
(30.00)                                      (-)

Sri Naresh Agarwal 12.00                                        -                                  
(12.00)                                      (-)

Sri Mahesh Kumar Sharma 5.75                                          -                                  
(4.31)                                        (-)

Sri Anand Kumar Sharma 11.46                                        -                                  
(8.71)                                        (-)

Directors' Fees
Sri Rajiv Adukia 0.40                                          -                                  

(-) (-)

List of the Related Party where control exists and related parties with whom transaction have taken place and relationship:

Nature of Transaction KMP

 Enterprises owned or 
significantlty 

influenced by KMP 
and their Relatives 

 *The above remuneration does not include provision for gratuity and leave encashment, which is determined for the Company as a 
whole. 
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III. Balances with related parties as at 31st March, 2024: (Rs. in lakh)

Receivables
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                             4.11                                 

(-) (6.81)                               

Sri Anand Kumar Sharma 2.28                                           -                                  
(-) (-)

Payables
Classic Electrodes (I) Ltd. -                                             3.22                                

(-) (3.21)                               

Jai Hanuman Industrial Corporation -                                             3.81                                
(-) (-)

Sri Anand Kumar Sharma -                                             -                                  
(0.70)                                          (-)

Sri Mahesh Kumar Sharma 0.57                                           -                                  
(0.32)                                          (-)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e) Figures in the bracket relate to the previous year.

The transactions with related parties have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those
on normal commercial terms. 
 No amount has been written back/written off during the year in respect of due to/from related parties. 

The amounts due from related parties are good and hence no provision for doubtful debts in respect of dues from
such related parties is required. 

The remuneration of directors is determined by the nomination and remuneration committee of the Board of
Directors considering the performance of individuals and market trends. 

Name of related party KMP

 Enterprises owned or 
significantlty 

influenced by KMP 
and their Relatives 
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33.4 Financial instruments - Accounting, Classification and Fair value measurements

A. Financial instruments by category

As at 31st March, 2024 (Rs. in lakh)

Sl. Particulars Total
No. Fair Value Amortized cost FVTOCI FVTPL Total

(1) Financial assets
(a) Investments 6                                         -   -                                  -  -  - 
(b) Trade receivables 7                               4,197.56 4,197.56  -  - 4,197.56 
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 8                               1,893.36 1,893.36  -  - 1,893.36 
(d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8                                  455.56 455.56  - 455.56 
(e) Other  financial assets 4 & 9                                  302.64 302.64  -  - 302.64 

Total 6,849.12                             6,849.12  -  - 6,849.12 

(2) Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 14 & 17 4,009.25 4,009.25  -  - 4,009.25 
(b) Trade payables 18 2,483.65 2,483.65  -  - 2,483.65 
(c) Other financial liabilities 19 156.29 156.29  -  - 156.29 

Total 6,649.19 6,649.19  -  - 6,649.19 

As at 31st March, 2023 (Rs. in lakh)

Sl. Particulars Total
No. Fair Value Amortized cost FVTOCI FVTPL Total
(1) Financial assets

(a) Other non current financial assets 4                               1,252.99                          1,252.99  -                                  -   1,252.99 
(b) Investments 6                                  115.00 -                                  - 115.00 115.00 
(c) Trade receivables 7                               3,595.11 3,595.11  -  - 3,595.11 
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 8                                  138.75 138.75  -  - 138.75 
(e) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8                                    29.32 29.32  -  - 29.32 
(f) Other  current financial assets 9                                    44.28 44.28  -  - 44.28 

Total 5,175.45                             5,060.45  - 115.00 5,175.45 

(2) Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 14 2,201.09 2,201.09  -  - 2,201.09 
(b) Trade and other payables 18 1,988.66 1,988.66  -  - 1,988.66 
(c) Other financial liabilities 19 113.09 113.09  -  - 113.09 

Total 4,302.84 4,302.84  -  - 4,302.84 

B. Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(i) Financial assets  measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31st March, 2024:
(Rs. in lakh)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars Refer Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

A. Financial assets
Investments 6                                         -                                      -   -                                                               -   
Total financial assets -                                      -                                 -                                                               -   

(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31st March, 2023:
(Rs. in lakh)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars Refer Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

A. Financial assets
Investments 6                                  115.00                                    -   -                                                       115.00 
Total financial assets 115.00                                -                                 -                                                       115.00 

Carrying value

Carrying value

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

Refer Note No.

Refer Note No.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other current financial assets, borrowings and other current financial liabilities is considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these
items due to their short-term nature.

Where such items are Non-current in nature, the same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined using adjusted net asset value method Similarly, unquoted equity instruments
where most recent information to measure fair value is insufficient, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements, cost has been considered as the best estimate of fair value.

The fair value of investment in mutual funds  has been determined based on quotes from mutual funds/ Asset management companies during the year.

The Company has not classified any financial instruments under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2.

The following tables provide the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
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33.5 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a) Credit risk

The ageing analysis of the receivables are given note no. 7.

(ii) The change in the loss allowances measured using life time expected credit loss model is here in below:

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year 12.77                         12.77                                  
Charge in Statement of Profit and Loss 27.79                         -                                      

-                             -                                      
Balance as at the end of the year 40.55                         12.77                                  

(iii) Balances with banks
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed in accordance with the Company’s policy.

(b) Liquidity risk

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Carrying Contractual Less than 1-5 years More than 

value cash flows 1 year 5 years

31st March, 2024
Borrowings

4,008.07                    4,008.07                             4,008.07                        -                              -                               
-                             -                                      -                                 -                              -                               

   -Non-current 1.18                           1.18                                    -                                 1.18                             -                               
Trade payables 2,483.65                    2,483.65                             2,483.65                        -                              -                               
Other financial liabilities 156.29                       156.29                                156.29                           -                              -                               
Total 6,649.20                    6,649.20                             6,648.02                        1.18                             -                               

31st March, 2023
Borrowings

1,800.04                    1,800.04                             1,800.04                        -                              -                               
176.43                       176.43                                176.43                           -                              -                               

   -Non-current 224.62                       224.62                                -                                 224.62                         -                               
Trade payables 1,988.66                    1,988.66                             1,988.66                        -                              -                               
Other financial liabilities 113.09                       113.09                                145.00                           -                              -                               
Total 4,302.84                    4,302.84                             4,110.13                        224.62                         -                               

(c) Market risk

Interest rate risk

(d )

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under financial instrument or a customer contract leading to a financial loss. The Company's exposure to credit risk from its
operating activities is primarily trade receivable and security deposit. Credit risk from balances with bank and other financial instrument is managed in accordance with Company's policies.
Surplus funds are parked only in approved invesment categories with well defined limits. Investment category is periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Credit risk arising from short term liquid funds, and other cash equivalents is limited and no collaterals are held against these because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies.

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans to employees, security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these financial assets are managed by monitoring the
recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system is in place to ensure that the amounts are within defined limits.

Customer credit risk is managed as per Company's established policy, procedure and control related to credit risk management. Credit quality of the a customer is assessed based on his previous
track record and individual credit limit are defined according to this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit
and loss.

Write back in Statement of Profit and Loss

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the
Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

The tables below summarises the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

   -Loans repayable on demand
   -Current maturities of long - term borrowings

   -Loans repayable on demand
   -Current maturities of long - term borrowings

 As at 31st 
March, 2024 

 As at 31st 
March, 2023 

The Company has current financial and non-financial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to 
meet expected operational expenses.

The Company has no international transactions and is not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The Company has no variable rate borrowings, therefore the Company is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Lien
The fair values of the fixed deposits under lien aggregated to Rs.120.21 lakh (Rs. 1,253.89 lakh on 31st March, 2023) which was held as Margin Money against
Bank Guarantees/Letter of credits.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as at  31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 is the carrying amounts as stated under note no. 8 (a) & (b).
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33.6 Capital Management

(a) Risk management

33.7 Employee benefits in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 19 " Employee Benefits:
a) Defined Contribution Plan :

(Rs. in lakh)

Defined Contribution Plan
Year ended 31st
March, 2024

Year ended 31st
March, 2023

22.50                                                      19.84 
                               7.01 6.86                           

b) Defined Benefit Plans:
Description of Plans

ii)  Details of unfunded post retirement plans are as follows : (Rs. in lakh)

As at 31st
 March, 2024

As at 31st
 March, 2023

I. Components of Employer Expense
I.1 Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current service cost 12.14                         10.04                          
Past service cost -                             -                              
Interest cost 5.19                           4.15                            
Curtailment -                             -                              
Settlement -                             -                              
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 17.32                         14.20                          

I.2 Remeasurements recognised in Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain / (loss) arising from:
- change in demographic assumptions  -  - 
- change in financial assumptions 2.41 0.83 
- changes in experience adjustments 12.83                         2.74                            
- changes in asset ceiling (excluding interest income) -                             -                              
(Returns)/loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in Net interest cost -                             -                              
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other comprehensive income 15.24                         3.57                            
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit and Loss and Other comprehensive income 32.56                         17.77                          

II. Change in present value of defined benefit obligation :
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 72.04                         56.82                          
Interest expense 5.19                           4.15                            
Past service cost -                             -                              
Current service cost 12.14                         10.04                          
Benefits paid (9.38)                          (2.54)                           
Actuarial gain / (loss) arising from:
- change in financial assumptions 2.41                           0.83                            
- changes in experience adjustments 12.83                         2.74                            
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 95.21                         72.04                          

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share-holders of the Company. The
Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and other stake holders.

Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme are considered as defined contribution plan.
The contributions to the respective fund are made in accordance with the relevant statute and are recognised as expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contribution. The contributions to defined contribution plan, recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as under :

Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund
Employers’ Contribution to Employee State Insurance Scheme

i) The Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the said Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The Gratuity Plan 
provides a lumpsum payment to employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and 
salary at retirement age etc. The scheme is unfunded.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the unfunded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for 
the said plan:

Gratuity
Particulars
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(Rs. in lakh)
III As at 31st

 March, 2024 
As at 31st

 March, 2023 
Plan assets at the beginning of the year -                              -                               
Interest income -                              -                               
Employers' contributions -                              -                               
Benefits paid -                              -                               
Re-measurement (Returns on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income) -                              -                               
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year -                              -                               

IV. Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at the year end:
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 95.21                           72.04                           
Fair value of Plan Assets -                              -                               
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (95.21)                         (72.04)                          
Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet
Current liability (8.27)                           (5.98)                            
Non-current liability (86.94)                         (66.06)                          

V.
Discount Rate (per annum) % 6.97% 7.20%
Expected Rate of Salary increase (per annum)% 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement/Superannuation Age (Year) 58 58
Mortality  Rates 100% of IALM 2012-

2014
100% of IALM 2012-

2014
VI. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation  

Expected cash flows (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 Year 8.27                             5.98                             
2 to 5 years 22.08                           17.65                           
6 to 10 years 25.59                           16.36                           
More than 10 years 190.70                         161.82                         
Total expected payment 246.63                         201.82                         

13 years 13 years
VII. Sensitivity analysis on Present value of Defined Benefit Obligations:

Discount rates
         1% Increase (85.40)                         (64.32)                          
         1% Decrease 106.85                         81.23                           
Expected rates of salary increases
         1% Increase 106.33                         81.03                           
         1% Decrease (85.07)                         (63.96)                          

VIII. Experience adjustments on Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets are as follows :
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation                            95.21                             72.04 
Fair value of Plan Assets                                  -                                     -   
(Deficit)/Surplus                            95.21                             72.04 

 -  - 
                           12.83                               2.74 

The sensitivity analyses above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key 
assumptions occurring as at the balance sheet date.

All sensitivities are calculated using the same actuarial method as for the disclosed present value of the defined benefits obligation at year end.

Change in fair value of plan assets during the year :

Actuarial Assumptions :

The  weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the balance sheet 

Experience adjustment of Plan Assets [Gain/(Loss)]
Experience adjustment of Obligations [(Gain)/Loss]
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iii) Risks related to defined benefit plans:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

i) The following are the assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation
a)
b)
c)

ii)

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in 
providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:
Interest Rate risk : The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and 
will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non-availabilty of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the 
liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase 
of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the  present value of oblgation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty.

Demographic Risk : The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to 
be worse compared to the assumption.
Regulatory Risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act , 1972(as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations 
requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20.00 lakh).

Discount rate: The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the yields / rates available on applicable bonds as on the 
Rate of escalation in salary : The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined considering the 
Attrition rate : Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death or disablement) determined 

The Gratuity and Provident Fund expenses have been recognised under " Contribution to Provident and Other Funds" under " Salaries and Wages" under Note No. 26.
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33.8 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) activities in accordance with Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013:

(Rs. in lakh)

 Year ended 
31st March, 2024

 Year ended 
31st March, 2023

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year                                     9.58                                5.37 
(ii) Total of previous years excess adjusted                                     0.13                                    -   
(iii) Amount of expenditure incurred                                     9.50                                5.50 
(iv) Shortfall at the end of the year                                        -                                      -   
(v) Total of previous years shortfall                                        -                                      -   
(vi) Reason for shortfall                                        -                                      -   
(vii) Excess at the end of the year                                     0.05                                0.13 

(vi) Nature of CSR activities: (Rs. in lakh)
Sector in which the 

Project
is covered

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

Year ended 
31st March, 2023

Name of 
implementing 
agency/Fund

Item no. (ii) of the 
Schedule VII of the 
Act. 

-                                     5.50                               Shree Shraddha 
Education and 
Charitable Trust 

Item no. (ii) of the 
Schedule VII of the 
Act. 

9.50                                   -                                 Karmaputra 
Charitable Trust 

-                                     5.50                              
(vii)

(viii)

33.9 Segment information as per Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments:

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend atleast 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding 3 

financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily allocated to a 

corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars 

Activity

Promoting education, including special education and 
employment enhancing vocation skills especially among 
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and 
livelihood enhancement projects.

Promoting education, including special education and 
employment enhancing vocation skills especially among 
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and 
livelihood enhancement projects.

Total
There is contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure.
There is no contractual obligation hence, provision is not required.

The Board of Directors has been identified as the Company's chief operating decision-maker (CODM) as defined  by Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments. The 
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance 
indicators by Business segments. The CODM of the Company evaluates the segments based on their revenue growth, operating income and return on 
capital employed.
The Company has identified a single reportable business segment  i.e. manufacturing, exporting and supplying of Industrial steel wires and galvanized 
wires.
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33.10  

33.11

33.12 Details of Loans given, investments made and guarantee given covered u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013:
(a) The particulars of investments made are given under  Note No. 6
(b) The Company has given any loan during the year.
(c )The Company has not given any guarantee and has not provided any security.

33.13  Government grants as per  Indian Accounting Standard-20:
Government Grants are recognized at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant would be received and the company would comply
with all the conditions attached with them.
The following are the government grants received during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024:

(Rs. in lakh)
 Sl. 
No. 

Particulars
Year ended 

31st March, 2024
Year ended 

31st March, 2023
I. Duty drawbacks received:

Export incentives under Chapter 73 of the Customs Tariff Act, 1975 0.85                              3.86                            

The company has complied with all the conditions for availment of the government grants during the year.
No contingencies have been recognized in relation to the government grants received during the year.

During the year ended 31st March, 2024, Bonus equity shares were allotted in proportion of 2(two) equity shares of Rs.2/- each for every 1 (one) equity 
share of Rs.2/- each to the existing shareholders of the Company as on record date i.e. 19th December, 2023 as approved by the Board of Director on 20th 
December, 2023 from sums standing to the credit of the securities premium Account and Free Reserves as on 31st March, 2023.

Impairment of Assets in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-36:
The Company has identified two manufacturing facilities at Sankrail Industrial Park, Jangalpur, PO. Kanduah, Howrah - 711302 as its cash generating
units and carried out test for impairement of Assets on the basis of indications set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 36 " Impairment of Assets" at the
balance sheet date. The company did not find any Impairment in its Assets as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.
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33.14  Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers"

(i) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers: (Rs. in lakh)

 Year ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year ended 
31st March, 2023 

Revenue by Contract Type
Reconciliation of revenue recongnised:
Contract Price 43,173.94                      28,230.38                   
Adjustments for:
- Discounts -                                -                             
Total revenue from contracts with customers 43,173.94                      28,230.38                   

Revenue by type of goods
Industrial steel wires and galvanized wires 42,301.69                      27,569.70                   

Geographical Markets:
In India 41,992.87                      27,260.87                   
In outside India 308.82                          308.82                        
Total revenue from contracts with customers 42,301.69                      27,569.70                   

Timing of revenue recognition:
Goods transferred at a point in time 42,301.69                      27,569.70                   
Total revenue from contracts with customers 42,301.69                      27,569.70                   

Type of customer
Government and non-
government customers

Government and non-
government customers

Contract duration Short-term Short-term

(ii) Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers
(Rs. in lakh)

 As at
31st March, 2024 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

Trade receivables (Net) (Refer Note no. 7) 4,197.56                        3,595.11                     
Contract liabilities
- Advances from customers (Refer Note no. 20) 60.02                            34.96                          
Contract assets
- Unbilled revenue -                                -                             
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33.15 Additional Regulatory Information
(a) Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule:

As at 31st March, 2024 (Rs. in lakh)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Plant and Machinery 36.33                        -                                    40.86                            -                             77.20                          

As at 31st March, 2023 (Rs. in lakh)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Plant and Machinery 298.26                      40.86                                 339.12                        

Notes:
(i) There is no time and cost overrun in comparision to its original plan.
(ii) There is no project temporarily suspended.

(b) The following are analytical Ratios for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023:
Sl. Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 Variance
1 Current Ratio  (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.86 2.09 -11.22%
2 Debt-Equity Ratio  (in times) Total debt Shareholder’s equity 0.48 0.30 58.46%
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio  (in times) Earning for Debt 

Service#
Debt service = Interest 
and Principal 

0.41 0.51 -20.44%

4 Return on Equity Ratio (%) Net profit after tax Average shareholder's 
equity

3.28% 2.09% 1.19%

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio  (in times) Revenue from 
operations

Average Inventory 2.53                              1.76 43.58%

6 Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio  (in times) Revenue from 
operations 

Average Trade  
Receivable

2.77 1.62 71.00%

7 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio  (in times) Purchases of goods Average Trade Payable 4.44                              2.61 70.05%
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio  (in times) Revenue from 

operations 
Working Capital 7.50 6.25 19.96%

9 Net Profit Ratio(%) Net Profit Total Income 2.35% 2.08% 0.27%
10 Return on Capital Employed (%) Profit before 

interest on long-
term borrowings 
and taxes 

Capital employed* 16.55% 11.13% 5.42%

11 Return on Investment (%) Income from 
investment

Average investment 0.93% 4.01% -3.08%

* Capital employed = Net worth+ Long-term borrowings +/- Deferred tax liabilities/Assets.
Explanation for change in the ratio by more/less than 25% as compared to the preceding year:

(i) Debt-Equity Ratio: Due to new working capital loan taken during the year.
(ii) Inventory Turnover Ratio: Due to increased in sale during the year.

(iii) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio: Due to Sales has increase and collections from debtors end of year is very good.
(iv)

(c)

(d)

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio: Due to increased purchase of raw material due to increased in production and sale during the year and regular payment to MSME 
vendors.

Total

Total

Amount in CWIP for period of

Amount in CWIP for period of

#Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest + Other non-cash adjustments

The quarterly returns and stock statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Disclosures required under Additional regulatory information as prescribed under paragraph 6L to general instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet under Schedule III to 
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company except as disclosed in Para (a) to (c) above.

CWIP

CWIP
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Notes forming part of  financial statements (contd.)

KRITIKA WIRES LIMITED

33.16  

33.17  

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kritika Wires Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Rakesh Kumar Singh) Hanuman Prasad Agarwal Naresh Kumar Agarwal
Partner (Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No. 066421 (DIN: 00654218) (DIN: 01020334)

Place of Signature: Kolkata Anand Kumar Sharma Mahesh Kumar Sharma
Date: 28th May, 2024 (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

The previous year’s  have been rearranged wherever necessary. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year is included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are 
to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

The Company has taken a factory premise at Bhubaneshwar, Odisha on lease for the purpose of expansion of its business.

    Sd/-     Sd/-     Sd/-

    Sd/-     Sd/-
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NOTICE  
 

Notice is hereby given that the 20th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members 
of M/s. Kritika Wires Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, 30th 

September, 2024 at 1.00 P.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
Item No. 1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements 
 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
including Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

Item No. 2. Re-appointment of a Director 
 
To appoint a director in place of Mr.Ankush Agarwal (DIN:08071021), who retires 
by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being 
eligible, offers himselffor re-election. 
 
Item No. 3: Re-appointment of Statutory Auditor  

To consider and, if thought fit to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and all 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and such other rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit Committee 
and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. G. P. Agarwal & Co. , Chartered 
Accountants [Firm registration No- 302082E], be and are hereby re-appointed as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five consecutive 
years from the conclusion of the 20th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2029 at 
such remuneration as may be mutually agreed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company and Statutory Auditors based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee from time to time.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:  
 
Item No. 4: Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditors 
 
To consider and, if thought fit to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) read with 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the Company 
hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 35,000/- p.a. (Rupees Thirty-Five Thousand 
Only)plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as 
payable to M/s. Sohan Lal Jalan & Associates, Cost Accountants, who have been 
appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, as the Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost 
records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 
2025. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or Company Secretary, 
be and is hereby severally authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that 
may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect 
to this resolution.” 
 
Item No. 5: Continuation of directorship of Mr. Sanjeev Binani (DIN: 
01149866) as Non-Executive Director 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 (1D) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules framed 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) / amendment(s) / re-
enactment(s) thereto), the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for continuation of the directorship of Mr. Sanjeev Binani (DIN: 01149866) 
as a Non- Executive Director of the Company.  
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are 
hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 3rd September, 2024 
Place: Kolkata 

For Kritika Wires Limited 
 

 Sd/- 
Mahesh Kumar Sharma 

 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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Notes: 

1. In compliance with the provisions of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) 
General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 read with MCA 
General Circular No. 10/2022, 02/2022, 20/2020 dated December 28, 2022, 
May 5, 2022, May 5, 2020 respectively (collectively referred to as “MCA 
Circulars”), and Master Circular No SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 
and Circular No SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated July 11, 
2023 and October 7, 2023 respectively (Collectively referred to as “SEBI 
Circulars”) (MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars together referred to as 
“Circulars”), the Company will be conducting its 20th AGM through VC/OAVM. 

 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and MCA Circulars, the 20th AGM of the Company is being held through 
VC/OAVM. 
 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 
thereunder, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not 
be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through 
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies will not be available for the 
AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this 
Notice. 
 

3. Corporate Members are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to 
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their 
votes through e-voting. Institutional/Corporate Members are requested to 
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG format) of the Board Resolution authorising 
its representatives to attend and vote at the AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of 
the Act, to Scrutiniser at rgadvisory18@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
prasanta.sen@linkintime.co.in. 

 
4. M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, having its registered office at C-101, 1st 

Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai – 400 083 
is appointed as Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents for its share registry 
(both, physical as well as electronic). 

 
5. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed 

to this Notice. 
 

6. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in 
the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be 
entitled to vote at the AGM. 
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7. As per the provisions of Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders 
attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum. 

 
8. In accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of 

the Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being 
sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses 
are registered with the Company or Depositories. Members may note that the 
Notice of AGM and Annual Report 2023-24 will also be available on the 
Company’s website www.kritikawires.com, website of the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited atwww.nseindia.comand on the website of Central 
Depository Services Limited at www.linkintime.co.in. 

 
9. Members are requested to notify changes, if any, pertaining to their name, 

postal address, e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of 
nomination, etc. to the concerned Depository Participant/Registrar and 
Transfer Agent/Company. 
 

10. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are 
interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be 
made available for on-line inspection at the AGM.  

 
11. Information of Director proposed to be re-appointed at the forthcoming Annual 

General Meeting as required under Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings is 
provided in the annexure to this Notice.  

 
12. The Register of Members shall remain closed from 24thSeptember, 2024 to 

30thSeptember, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 20th AGM of the 
Company. 

 
13. SEBI has mandated submission of Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) by 

every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to provide their PAN details to their 
respective DPs with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.  

 
Voting Through Electronic Means: 
 
14. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 20 of The 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
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and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings, the Company is providing 
facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
arrangement with Link Intime India Private Limited for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting 
votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as Venue Voting on 
the date of the AGM will be provided by Link Intime India Private Limited.  
 

15. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Rajesh Ghorawat, Practicing 
Company Secretary (FCS: 7226, C.P.: 20897) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 
the remote e-voting and e-voting at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
16. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may 

also attend/participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again. 

 
17. The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, 27th September, 2024 (9:00 

am) and ends on Sunday, 29th September, 2024 (5:00 pm). During this period, 
members of the Company holding shares as on the cut-off date of Monday, 
23rdSeptember, 2024, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-
voting module shall be disabled by Link Intime India Private Limited for voting 
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member 
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 
 

18. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the 
paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23rd 

September, 2024. Any person, who ceases to be the Member of the Company 
as on the cut-off date and is in receipt of this Notice, shall treat this Notice for 
information purpose only. 

 
19. Any person who become member of the Company subsequent to the dispatch 

of the Notice of AGM and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e., 23rd 

September, 2024 may obtain the Login ID and Password by sending a request 
to the Company/RTA. 

 
20. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and 

after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the 
procedure mentioned in the Notice.  

 
 

 

 

 

129



 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL 
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 

Step1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDLe-Voting system in case of 
individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode. 

 
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding 

shares in physicalmode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  

i. The voting period begins on Friday, 27th September, 2024 (9:00 am) and ends 
on Sunday, 29th September, 2024 (5:00 pm). During this period, shareholders of 
the Company holding shares, as on the cut-off date i.e., Monday, 23rd 

September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically.  
 

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be 
entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 
 

iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
9thDecember, 2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, 
in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that 
the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 
shareholders is at a negligible level.  
 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-
voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various 
ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders.  
 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public 
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account 
holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease 
and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 
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LOGIN METHOD FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN 
DEMAT MODE IS GIVEN BELOW: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL: 

METHOD 1 - If registered with NSDL IDeAS facility  

Users who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:  

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.comand click on “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login”.  

b) Enter user id and password. Post successful authentication, click on 
“Access to e-voting”.  

c) Click on “LINKINTIME” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

OR  
User who have not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:  

a) To register, visit URL:https://eservices.nsdl.com and select  “Register 
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click on 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp“ 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields. 
c) Post registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password.  
d) After successful login, click on “Access to e-voting”.  
e) Click on “LINKINTIME” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 

Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 
 

METHOD 2 - By directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL:  
 

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository 

website wherein you can see “Access to e-voting”. 
e) Click on “LINKINTIME” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 

Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 
 
 
 
 

131



 

 
 
 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL: 

METHOD 1 – If registered with CDSL Easi/Easiest facility 

Users who have registeredfor CDSL Easi/Easiest facility. 

 

a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/loginor 
www.cdslindia.com. 

b) Click on New System Myeasi 
c) Login with user id and password  
d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting menu. The menu will 

have links of e-voting service providers i.e., LINKINTIME, for voting during 
the remote e-voting period.  

e) Click on “LINKINTIME” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

OR 

Users who have not registered for CDSL Easi/Easiest facility. 

a) To register, visit URL: 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.  
c) Post registration, user will be provided Login ID and password.  
d) After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu.  
e) Click on “LINKINTIME” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 

Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 
 

METHOD 2 - By directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL. 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com/ 
b) Go to e-voting tab.  
c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click 

on “Submit”. 
d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and 

Email as recorded in Demat Account  
e) After successful authentication, click on “LINKINTIME” or “evoting link 

displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to Link 
Intime InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting 
period. 
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository 
Participant: 

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your depository participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
voting facility.  

a) Login to DP website 
b) After Successful login, members shall navigate through “e-voting” tab under 

Stocks option.   
c) Click on e-voting option, members will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 

Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-voting 
menu. 

d) After successful authentication, click on “LINKINTIME” or “evoting link 
displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to Link 
Intime InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting 
period.  
 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ 
Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for 
e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under: 

 
1. Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
 
2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your 

following details: -  
 
A. User ID:  
Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL 
demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID; Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 
Digit Beneficiary ID.  
B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders 
who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ 
Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.  
C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As 
recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format). 
D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four 
digits), as recorded with your DP/Company.  
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*Shareholdersholding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and 
‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 
*Shareholdersholding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 
 
▶Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 
characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at 
least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).  
▶Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).  

 
3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.  
4. Enter your User ID, Password, and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and 

click on ‘Submit’.  
 
Cast your vote electronically: 
 

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. 
Select ‘View’ icon.  

2. E-voting page will appear.  
3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired 

option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, 
click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 
‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your 
vote.  

 
Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual 
Fund”): 

STEP 1 – Registration 
a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
b) Click on Sign up under “Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund”  
c) Fill up your entity details and submit the form.  
d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the 

Primary contact person email ID (which is filled at the time of sign up at Sr. 
No. 2 above). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, 
Director, Company Secretary of the entity & stamped and sent to 
insta.vote@linkintime.co.in.   

e) Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) will be 
sent to Primary contact person’s email ID.  

f) While first login, entity will be directed to change the password and login 
process is completed.  
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STEP 2 –Investor Mapping  

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.inand login with credentials 
as received in Step 1 above.  

b) Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section  
c) Map the Investor with the following details:  

a. ‘Investor ID’-  
i. Members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 

Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID i.e., 
IN00000012345678  

ii. Members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 
Digit Beneficiary ID.  

b. ‘Investor’s Name - Enter full name of the entity.  
c. ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department.  
d. ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney. File 

Name for the Board resolution/Power of Attorney shall be – DP ID and 
Client ID. Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload 
specimen signature card.  

d) Click on Submit button and investor will be mapped now.  
e) The same can be viewed under the “Report Section”.   

 
STEP 3 – Voting through remote e-voting. 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, once remote e-voting is 
activated:  

METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY  

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.inand login with credentials 
as received in Step 1 above. 

b) Click on ‘Votes Entry’ tab under the Menu section.  
c) Enter Event No. for which you want to cast vote. Event No. will be 

available on the home page of Instavote before the start of remote 
evoting.   

d) Enter ‘16-digit Demat Account No.’ for which you want to cast vote.  
e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your 

desired option 'Favour / Against' (If you wish to view the entire 
Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution' file link).  

f) After selecting the desired option i.e., Favour / Against, click on 
'Submit'.   

g) A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, 
click on 'Yes', else to change your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly 
modify your vote. (Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently). 
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OR  

VOTES UPLOAD:  

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with credentials 
as received in Step 1 above.  

b) You will be able to see the notification for e-voting in inbox.   
c) Select 'View' icon for 'Company’s Name / Event number '. E-voting page 

will appear.  
d) Download sample vote file from ‘Download Sample Vote File’ option. 
e) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in excel 

and upload the same under ‘Upload Vote File’ option.  
f) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed. 

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
or change it subsequently).  

 

Helpdesk: 

Helpdesk for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non-
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime 
INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact 
on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the 
respective helpdesk for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., 
NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type  Helpdesk details  
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 
2499 7000 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33 
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Forgot Password: 

Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form has forgotten the 
password:  

If an Individual shareholder holding securities in physical form has forgotten the 
USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot 
Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime: 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 
o Click on‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot    
   password?’  
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  

Click on “SUBMIT”. 
 

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / 
her registered e-mail address. Shareholderscan set the password of his/her choice 
by providing the information about the particulars of the Security Question and 
Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned 
above. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special 
character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one 
capital letter.  

 
User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): 
Your User ID is Event No +Folio Number registered with the Company 
 
User ID for Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account is 8 Character DP 
ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
 
User ID for Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account is 16 Digit 
Beneficiary ID. 
 
Institutional shareholders (“Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund”) has 
forgotten the password: 

If a Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode has forgotten 
the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then theshareholdercan use the 
“Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime: 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 
o Click on‘Login’ under ‘Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund’ tab and 

further Click ‘forgot password?’  
o Enter User ID, Organization IDand Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 

Click on “SUBMIT”. 
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In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / 
her registered e-mail address. Shareholderscan set the password of his/her choice 
by providing the information about the particulars of the Security Question and 
Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned 
above. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special 
character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one 
capital letter. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL 
has forgotten the password:  

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned 
depository/ depository participants website. 
 
 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person 

and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.  
 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be 

used only for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time 

till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 
 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERSATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same 
as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

 
2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of 

Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions 
mentioned above for e-voting. 

 
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend 

the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for 
better experience. 

 
5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a 

good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
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6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 

through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss 
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the 

meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in 
advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
compliance@kritikawires.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak 
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days 
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at compliance@kritikawires.com. These 
queries will be replied to shareholders by the company suitably by email.  

 
8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be 

allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during 

the AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting 
through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be 
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only 
to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
 
 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name 
of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to compliance@kritikawires.com. 
 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respective Depository Participant (DP). 
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3. For Individual Demat Shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. 
with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-
Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

 
If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the 
CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or 
contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
Item No. 3 
 
The Members at the 15th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on 30th September, 
2019 approved the appointment of M/s. G. P. Agarwal & Co., Chartered 
Accountants [Firm registration No- 302082E], as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of the said AGM. M/s. G. P. 
Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants [Firm registration No- 302082E], will 
complete their present term on conclusion of this AGM.  

The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) at the meeting held on 3rd 

September, 2024, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee (‘the Committee’), 
and considering the experience & expertise of the existing auditors, and in the best 
interest of the Company, recommended for the approval of the Members, the re-
appointment of M/s. G. P. Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Auditors 
of the Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of this AGM till the 
conclusion of the 25th AGM, in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

M/s. G. P. Agarwal & Co., is a Chartered Accountant Firm registered with The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Firm has been associated as 
Statutory Auditors of many listed and other large companies engaged in 
manufacturing and service sectors, Banks, NBFCs, PSUs company and is closely 
working with regulatory bodies in various capacities. 

M/s. G. P. Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants have given their consent to act as 
the Auditors of the Company and have also confirmed compliance with the 
conditions prescribed under Sections 139 and 141 of the Act read with the Rules 
thereunder.  

The proposed remuneration to be paid to Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 is 
Rs. 2,00,000 /-( Rupees Two Lacs Only) plus applicable taxes.  

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their 
relatives, is interested in this Resolution. The Board recommends this Ordinary 
Resolution for your approval. 
 
Item No. 4 
 
In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is 
required to undertake the audit of its cost records for products covered under the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, by a Cost Accountant in Practice. 
 
In compliance with the above, the Board on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee had approved the appointed M/s Sohan Lal Jalan & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, (FRN: 000521) as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial  
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Year ended 31st March, 2025. At the said meeting, the Audit Committee also 
considered the remuneration of Rs. 35,000/- p.a. (Rupees Thirty-Five Thousand 
Only) (plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses) payable 
to the Cost Auditors for Financial Year 2024-25. 
 
In making the decision on the appointment and remuneration of the Cost Auditors, 
the Audit Committee considered, the Cost Auditors’ performance during the 
previous year(s) in examining and verifying the accuracy of the cost accounting 
records maintained by the Company. Accordingly, the Audit Committee 
recommended to the Board, the appointment of M/s Sohan Lal Jalan & Associates, 
Cost Accountants (FRN: 000521) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for Financial 
Year ending 31stMarch, 2025 at a remuneration of Rs. 35,000/- p.a. (Rupees 
Thirty-Five Thousand Only) (plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses). 
 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee approved the 
appointment and remuneration of M/s Sohan Lal Jalan & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, (FRN: 000521) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial 
Year ending 31st March, 2025. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to 
Cost Auditors require ratification by the shareholders of the company. 
 
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution 
as set out at item no. 4 of the notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to 
the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2025. 
 
None of the Directors/Managers/Key Managerial Personnel or relatives of any of the 
Directors/Managers/Key Managerial Personnel of your Company are in any way 
concerned orinterested in this resolution. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution set forth in item no. 4 for the approval of the 
Company. 
 
Item No. 5 
 
As per Regulation 17(1D) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), after with effect from 1stApril, 2024, the continuation of a director 
serving on the Board of the Company shall be subject to the approval by the 
shareholders in a general meeting at least once in every five years from the date of 
their appointment or reappointment.  
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Mr. Sanjeev Binani (DIN: 01149866) is Non-Executive Director of the Company and 
is liable to retire by rotation. In accordance with the said regulations, it is necessary 
to approve continuation of his directorship on the Board of the Company. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the 
Company at their meeting held on 3rd September, 2024 have recommended the 
continuation of directorship of Mr. Sanjeev Binani (DIN: 01149866) as a “Non-
Executive Director” of the Company, considering his rich experience and expertise.  
 
The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 
of the Notice for approval by the Members.  
 
The Members are, therefore, requested to grant their approval by way of passing an 
Ordinary Resolution for the continuation of directorship of Mr. Sanjeev Binani (DIN: 
01149866) as a ‘Non-Executive Director’ of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation.  
 
None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
said Resolution. 
 
 
 
 
Date: 3rd September, 2024 
Place: Kolkata 

For Kritika Wires Limited 
 

 Sd/- 
Mahesh Kumar Sharma 

  Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 
 

BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS TO BE APPOINTED / RE-APPOINTED AT THE 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
Mr. Ankush Agarwal (DIN: 08071021) 

 
Mr. Ankush Agarwal (DIN: 08071021) holds a Bachelor’s degree in Technology. He 
has wide experience of around 7 years in the field of technology, marketing and 
administration. 

 
He is relative of Mr. Naresh Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 01020334), Chairman cum 
Whole-time Director and Mr. Hanuman Prasad Agarwal (DIN: 00654218), Managing 
Director cum Whole-time Director. He is not debarred from holding office of director 
by virtue of SEBI order or any such authority. 

 
He is not holding Directorship/Committee Membership in any other listed 
company. He is not holding any equity shares in the Company.   
 

 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- x ------------------------------------------------- 
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Kritika Wires Limited
Registered Address: 1A, Bonfield Lane, Mezanine Floor, Kolkata-700001

Corporate Office: Unit-201, 2nd Floor, Bus Terminus & Commercial 

Complex, Plot-BG-12, AA-I, New Town Pride Hotel Building, Kolkata-

700156

Website : www.kritikawires.com
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